
MARION COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATING COUNCIL 
TUESDAY JULY 27, 2021 

4:00 – 6:00 pm 
Commissioners’ Board Room 

Meeting Packet 

SECTION ITEM PAGE 
1 2021-23 CJC Specialty Courts Grant Application 2 
2 2019-21 JRI Grant - Request to Rebalance Personnel Budget 16 
3 April 13, 2021 Draft MCPSCC Meeting Minutes 18 
4 April 28, 2021 Draft MCPSCC Meeting Minutes 25 

5 Issue Brief # 3 - JRI 2019-21 Performance Portfolio & 
2021-23 JRI Grant Funding Proposals 29 

6 Issue Brief # 4 – JRI 2021-23 Supplemental Budget Proposal 44 
7 New Program Funding Request 2021-23 JRI Grant (Sheriff’s Office) 47 
8 10% Victim Services Funding Proposals 50 
9 2021-23 JRI Grant Solicitation from the Oregon CJC 62 

10 City of Salem Police Department- Independent Assessment - April 22, 2021 83 
11 2021 Legislative Session 204 



Section 1 

2021-23 CJC SPECIALTY COURTS GRANT APPLICATION 

2



3



4



Marion County 
Treatment Courts
Oregon Criminal Justice Commission Grant Applications

5



Treatment Court Goals
• Reducing recidivism and substance-use disorder among 

offenders.
• Increasing the offender’s likelihood of successful 

rehabilitation through early, continuous, and judicially 
supervised treatment, mandatory random drug testing, 
and community supervision.

• Enhancing public safety by addressing the root cause of 
the offender’s involvement in criminal activities. 

6



Treatment Court Funding
Criminal Justice Commission Grants
• In-kind Funding

• Judge
• Clerk
• DDA
• Probation

• Donations
• Small donation funds for each court support incentives

7



CJC Grant Requirements
• A county or state body must be the grant administrator.

• Marion County Health Department has agreed to administer the 
grants for all five courts. 

• The Local Public Safety Coordinating Counsel must be the 
applicant.

• We are asking you vote to approve the applications as prepared 
by our treatment courts and authorize their submission.

• A letter of support is required for the applications.

8



Marion County Treatment Courts
• Adult Drug Court
• Mental Health Court
• Veterans Treatment Court
• Fostering Attachment Treatment Court
• Juvenile Drug (STAR) Court

9



Adult Drug Court
• 2021-23 Proposed

• $449,648.00
• Serving 60 participants/mo

• 2019-21 Actual
• $398,803

• Increase due to:
• Personnel
• Drug testing

• .5 FTE Treatment Court Coordinator

Personnel

• Joint Application Among 5 Tx Court

Drug Testing

• Dual Certified Mental Health/Drug 
and Alcohol Clinician on the team

• Peer Mentor
• Housing
• Bus Passes
• Education

Client Support

10



Mental Health Court

• 2021-2023 Proposed
• $267,476
• Serving 30 participants/mo

• 2019-2021 Actual
• $339,657

• Increase due to: 
• Personnel
• Drug testing

• Decrease due to:
• Number of contractors

• .25 FTE Treatment Court Coordinator

Personnel

• Joint Application Among 5 Tx Courts

Drug Testing

• Dual Certified Mental Health/Drug and 
Alcohol Clinician on the team

• Peer Mentor
• Housing
• Bus Passes
• Education

Client Supports

11



Veterans Treatment Court
• 2021-2023 Proposed

• $287,228
• Serving 30 participants/mo

• 2019-2021 Actual
• $243,681

• Increase due to:
• Personnel
• Drug testing

• .25 FTE Treatment Court Coordinator

Personnel

• Joint Application Among 5 Tx Courts

Drug Testing

• Dual Certified Mental Health/Drug and 
Alcohol Clinician on the team

• Peer Mentor
• Housing
• Bus Passes
• Education

Client Support

12



Fostering Attachment Treatment Court
• 2021-23 Proposed

• $329,409.79
• Serving 30 participants/mo

• 2019-2021 Actual
• $297,950.00

• Increase due to:
• Drug testing
• UA collections
• Client supports

• .5 FTE Treatment Court Coordinator

Personnel

• Joint Application Among 5 Tx Courts

Drug Testing

• D/A Treatment providers on the team 
• MH Counselors on the team
• Education
• Housing
• Transportation

Client Support

13



STAR Court
• 2021-23 Proposed

• $ 319,132.94
• Serving 30 participants/mo

• 2019-21 Actual
• $ 291,746.00

• Increase due to:
• Drug testing
• Client Support

• .5 FTE Treatment Court Coordinator

Personnel

• Joint Application Among 5 Tx Courts

Drug Testing

• A/D Treatment provider on the team
• MH Treatment provider on the team 
• Transportation

Client Support

14



The Ask
• The Local Public Safety Coordinating Counsel must be the 

applicant.
• We are asking you vote to approve the applications as prepared 

by our treatment courts and authorize their submission.

15



Section 2 

2019-21 JRI GRANT  

 REQUEST TO REBALANCE PERSONNEL BUDGET 

16



 

 

Marion County Courthouse • 100 High Street NE / PO Box 14500, Salem, OR 97309 

503.588.5094 • 503.588.7931 (fax) • www.co.marion.or.us/so  

  

May 26, 2021 
 
To: Marion County Public Safety Coordinating Council  
      Executive Committee 
 
Re: 2019-2021 Justice Reinvestment Initiative (JRI) - Request to Rebalance Personnel Budget 
 
The Marion County Sheriff’s Office Community Corrections Division was allocated approximately $4.3 million in JRI 
funding for the 2019-2021 biennium, which was allocated to eight distinct prison diversion and reentry programs. 
As with many 2-year grant programs, the end of the biennium provides us an opportunity to rebalance areas of 
the JRI budget to ensure we adhere to our original goals, meet expenditure expectations and our program goals. 
Upon review, we have identified three personnel positions that are estimated to go over the original budgeted 
amount, as outlined below with estimated shortages: 
 

 Personnel #2 (Deputy - 416 Program) – estimated shortage -$39,682.17 as of 6/30/2021. 

 Personnel #3 (Deputy - 416 Program) – estimated shortage -$17,299.59 as of 6/30/2021. 

 Personnel #4 (Deputy - 416 Program) – estimated shortage -$40,810.32 as of 6/30/2021. 

 Total estimated shortage: -$97,792.08 
 
To offset and balance these estimated shortages, we have identified one personnel position that is estimated to 
have funds remaining at the end of the fiscal year. The position associated with Personnel #1 noted below was 
vacant during quarter 4 and part of quarter 5. The duties were picked up by other staff that we did not charge JRI 
funds for, hence the funds remaining in this line item. Below outlines the estimated funds available:  
 

 Personnel #1 (Deputy - TJC Program) – estimated funds remaining $104,100.53 as of 6/30/2021. 

 Total estimated funds available to reallocate: $104,100.53 
 
Based on the availability of personnel budgeted funds, we are requesting to adjust our personnel budget by using 
funds available in Personnel #1 to offset estimated shortages from Personnel #2, #3, and #4. For further 
explanation, see Attachment A. With this small budget adjustment, rebalancing approximately 2% of our overall 
JRI allocation, we will continue to be well within our overall JRI plan personnel budget and able to cover all 
personnel expenses. Thank you for your consideration and support. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Kevin Karvandi, Commander 

17



Section 3 

 

 

 

 

APRIL 13, 2021 

DRAFT MCPSCC MEETING MINUTES  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



MARION COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATING COUNCIL  
MINUTES 

April 13, 2021 4:00 PM  
 Courthouse Square  

 Salem, OR  
 
MCPSCC:  Chris Baldridge, Joe Budge, Mark Caillier, Kevin Cameron, Rob Carney, Paige Clarkson, Jayne 

Downing, Don Frederickson, Courtland Geyer, Tamra Goettsch, Troy Gregg, Linda Hukari, Levi 
Herrera-Lopez; Joe Kast, Alison Kelley, Pastor Garland King, Pete McCallum, Todd McCann, Ed 
McKenney, Tracy Prall, Mike Runyon, Tom Sermak, Cari Sessums, Shaney Starr, Trevor 
Womack, Hitesh Parekh (recorder).   

    
GUESTS:  Chad Ball, Ian Davidson, Katie Ferguson, David Rash, and Chris Zohner  
  
1. ADMINISTRATIVE (INFORMATION/ACTION) 
Meeting called to order at 4:05 P.M. by Commissioner Kevin Cameron.  
 

Welcome and introductions 
• Introductions  

 
Announcements and upcoming events 
• Commissioner Cameron said the Executive Committee of the MCPSCC has been holding monthly 

combined meetings with the county’s state legislative delegates.  
 District Attorney Paige Clarkson and Government Relations Manager Barbara Young are keeping a watch 

on legislative bills for the county.  
 County has also hired a lobbyist to help with fire recovery efforts in the Santiam Canyon. 
• Will need to hold a full council meeting on April 28 as the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission has 

released the 2021-23 Justice Reinvestment Grant Application for counties.  

Memberships 
• Jim Ferraris, Michael Iwai, and Jessica Kampfe have resigned from the council.  
• Newly appointed council members are Salem Police Chief Trevor Womack, Woodburn/Hubbard Fire Chief 

Joseph Budge, and Defense Bar Representative Tom Sermak.  
• Also recommending Hubbard Police Chief Dave Rash and OSP Lieutenant Chris Zohner be selected as 

council members.  

MOTION: Don Frederickson made a motion recommending the Board of Commissioners appoint Hubbard 
Police Chief Dave Rash and Oregon State Police Lieutenant Chris Zohner to the Marion County Public Safety 
Coordinating Council for a three-year term. Seconded by Ed McKenney. Motion passes. 
 
Following memberships will expire on July 31, 2021: Rob Carney, Mike Runyon, Don Frederickson, Ed 
McKenney, Kim Doster, Cari Sessums and Todd McCann. Membership will be renewed for another three-year 
term.   
 
Approve December 15, 2020 MCPSCC Meeting Minutes 
MOTION: Ed McKenney made a motion to approve the December 15, 2020 meeting minutes. Seconded by 
Pete McCallum. A voice vote was unanimous. 
 
 
 
 

19



Other 
Mr. Ed McKenney asked what the allowance is for self-defense when rioters damage a vehicle and surround a 
driver as had happened during a recent demonstration/riot in Salem - and if the driver will be charged for a 
criminal offense?  

• Mr McKenney asked if any of the rioters were taken into custody.   
• Mr. McKenney said his definition of a demonstrator is the one that leaves when the riots start. 
• Salem Police Chief Womack said the City had worked together with the Oregon State Police on the day 

the incident occurred.  
o Individual with the fire arm was not arrested or detained as he was determined to be a victim.  
o Several other individuals were arrested.  
o Mr. McKenney said he has a lot of respect for law enforcement and they always do a great job.  

2. APPROVAL OF 2021-23 JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION PLAN 
Juvenile Department Director Troy Gregg presented this item. Summary of presentation:  

• Juvenile Crime Prevention Funds from the Oregon Youth Authority have been used by the Marion 
County Juvenile Department for the Family Support Program (FSP) for the last decade.    

o FSP is designed to provide early intervention with the highest risk young children ages 9 to 13, 
already involved with the Juvenile Department or at risk of becoming involved.  

o Program reduces juvenile crime and helps families make positive changes in their lives. 
o FSP staff help the whole family in a community-based team approach working together with 

parents, children, school staff, and others of importance in the child’s life.  
o Referrals come to the Juvenile Department from school counselors and juvenile probation 

officers. 
o Services are available for up to 9 months from the Family Support Specialists, Learning 

Specialists, and Youth & Family Counselors. 
• Mr. Todd McCann said he was highly supportive of the program and program should be retained.  
• Mr. Mike Runyon said this program acts as a barrier to prevent youth from moving further into the 

criminal justice system. 
 
MOTION: Pete McCullum made a motion to approve the 2021-23 Juvenile Crime Prevention Plan. Seconded by 
Don Frederickson. A voice vote was unanimous. 
 
3. JUSTICE REINVESTMENT INITIATIVE (JRI) QUARTERLY UPDATE 
Oregon Criminal Justice Commission, (CJC) Justice Reinvestment Initiative (JRI) Program Manager Ian Davidson 
provided an overview of the 2021-23 JRI Grant Application. Summary of presentation: 

• The Accountability and Equity Act (or House Bill 3064, 2019) changed the grant application process for 
the 2021-23 biennium.  
o Act expanded membership of the grant review committee.  
o A justice reinvestment equity advisory group was created and asked to evaluate the JRI grant 

program, how program funds are distributed, and then make recommendations for legislative 
and agency administrative changes.  

 Their recommended changes have been incorporated in the 2021-23 grant application.   
• One suggestion was to lengthen out the grant application timeline.  
• The 2021-23 application process will start much earlier and is in two phases.  
• The preliminary application is due May 14 and the final - August 25. 

 The CJC can then give feedback to counties before the actual application.  
 Thinking behind this is don’t want counties to go through the entire grant process and 

then discover that county came up with an erroneous application.  
 Legislature still needs to designate an amount for the grant, and after this happens, the 

CJC will be able to finalize and release the second part of the application.  
 

20



• Mr. Davidson said a lot of thought had been put into the questions for the counties.  
o Goal was for counties to discuss amongst themselves what is best for criminal justice and 

develop a thoughtful application.  
o The preliminary application asks each county where the gaps are in their respective criminal 

justice systems.  
o Could be the need for more judges or mobile crisis response teams.  
o Marion County is doing well on reducing prison bed use but may want to look at length of 

stays in prison.  
• CJC has put together a race, ethnicity, and gender demographic dashboard.  

o Wholly interactive. Breaks down racial, and gender demographics by counties so can select a 
county and zoom in and see population disparities.  

• Application also asks about historically underserved communities and community partners.  
o CJC is previewing questions it will ask during the final application phase.  

• For the first time application will require a statement of commitment to reduce recidivism while 
protecting public.  

o Required by statute.  
• Commissioner Cameron asked Mr. Davidson to return at a future date to give a report on Marion 

County’s quarterly prison intakes.  
o Concerned that baseline funding for parole and probation has not increased and may 

decrease even though county is doing a great job of diverting people from state prison.  
o MCPSCC holding a special meeting on April 28 to go through the preliminary JRI grant 

application.  
 
4. CRIMINAL JUSTICE ADVISORY COUNCIL (CJAC) UPDATE 
MCPSCC switched roles and became the Criminal Justice Advisory Council chaired by Marion County Circuit 
Court Presiding Judge Tracy Prall. 
Summary of presentation by Judge Prall: 
• A smaller group of the criminal justice advisory council members includes Marion County Jail Commander 

Tad Larson, District Attorney Paige Clarkson, Marion County Circuit Court Trail Court Administrator Linda 
Hukari, and defense bar representatives Tom Sermak and Olcott Thompson.  

o This smaller group met every Wednesday morning during COVID-19 emergency without fail. 
o Relationships forged prior to the pandemic allowed group to work together and move criminal 

cases through the courts.  
o Group worked on pre-trial release, access to attorneys by adults in custody, managing the court 

dockets for all the partners, and even security during the riots when the courts had to be shut.  
o Currently, there is a new judge order from the Oregon State Courts regarding which matters can 

proceed in the court in person.  
o County has been able to expand in person appearances in the court, including out of custody 

trials.  
o The Grand Theatre is being used by the county for settlement contracts and out of custody trials. 

Will now also be doing civil trials there.  
o Ms. Clarkson said Marion County Circuit Court has been one of the most successfully operating  

courts in the state during the CIOVID-19, fires, riots, and ice storms. Successful because other 
counties don’t have a similar structure and partnership.  

o Commissioner Cameron said all public safety agencies in the county should be proud of what they 
have accomplished through careful planning and continually adapting their operations to 
streamline services during the emergencies.   

 
5. 2021 LEGISLATIVE SESSION UPDATES 
Summary of legislative bills discussed: 
 

21



House Bill 2002. Moved to House Rules Committee. Bill is an omnibus bill covering law enforcement stops, 
arrests, sentencing, probationary issues, and repeals certain mandatory sentences. Ms. Clarkson said there 
had been a lot of public testimony in opposition to it. Bill did not carry any stakeholder input prior to it being 
written - and no experts were at the table for policy making discussions. So all stakeholders testified and 
provided written testimony in opposition to it. Bad policy making in this regard. Concerned about BM 11 
issues and Justice Reinvestment Initiative funding. When someone is sentenced in Marion County, they have 
to receive the proper services to be successful. This will not be possible if the legislature reduces JRI funding. 
Marion County defense bar representative Tom Sermak said the defense bar’s view is that Measure 11 should 
be repealed so that discretion to impose lengthy prison sentences falls on elected officials in the court instead 
of deputy district attorneys who charge the defendant. 
 
BM 110. There is a workgroup dealing with BM 110. This measure supported making personal, non-
commercial, possession of a controlled substance no more than a Class E violation (max fine of $100 fine) and 
establishing a drug addiction treatment and recovery program funded in part by the state's marijuana tax 
revenue and state prison savings. 
 
HB 2177- Authorizes Chief Justice of Supreme Court to collect filing fees from District Attorney Offices across 
the state and use proceeds to fund certain state court technology services.  
 
Senate Bill 48 - Eliminates requirement that defendants post security for bail prior to release except in certain 
circumstances. Directs the presiding judge of a judicial district to enter a standing pretrial release order 
specifying persons and offenses subject to release on recognizance, conditional release, and those not eligible 
for release until arraignment. Directs the Chief Justice of the Supreme Court to establish release guidelines for 
the pretrial release orders described in this section. Modifies findings required for certain pre-trial release 
decisions. Eliminates requirement that a defendant deposit 10 percent of security imposed prior to release on 
security except in certain cases. Establishes procedures for issuance of orders to forfeit security or pay on a 
promissory note if a defendant violates a condition of release.  
 
SB 397- Is a collaborative stakeholder effort to simplify the expunction statute in Oregon which is currently  
very dense and hard to understand.  
 
SB 214 - Is a victim restituition bill. Creates rebuttable presumption that a charge, expense, or cost is 
reasonable if a record, bill, estimate, or invoice is produced by a third party and introduced by the district 
attorney as part of presentation on economic damages suffered by victim. Restituition is hard to get, want to 
fix statute but getting a lot of push back from the defense bar. Right now standard is difficult  to establish. Mr. 
Sermak said the restituition bill is moving forward and some amendments have been offered, optimistic it will 
improve the cjc system and community at same time. 
 
SB 48 – If this bill passes, it will have an impact on pre-trial releases. Courts will have to collaborate with 
partners to figure out guidelines.  
 
HB 2539 Prohibits juror from being identified by name during a court proceeding open to the public. Requires 
the names of jurors be made available to the parties to a proceeding.  
 
Summary of discussions 
 
• Hopeful that SB 497 A will pass. Requires counties assume responsibility for community-based 

supervision for designated domestic violence misdemeanors as well as offenders convicted of 
felonies or designated drug-related misdemeanors. It is a funding bill for community corrections that 
includes the domestic violence and sex offender population.  

 

22



• Undersheriff Wood said he is very concerned about the legislature reducing base line funding for 
community corrections as these funds are the foundation for everything the Marion County Sheriff’s 
Office Parole and Probation Division does. Current baseline funding is $278 M for the 2019-21 biennium 
statewide and will decrease to $230 m for the 2021-23 biennium. This will impact the Community 
Corrections Division’s ability to carry out basic supervision. Hope that through the Ways and Means 
Committee, there will be an infusion of $25 m that was previously agreed upon in the past two sessions.  

 
• Jayne Downing, executive director, Center for Hope and Safety said Senate Bill 271-1 and House Bill 

3327 are victim services bills. Bills extend sunset for authorization to Oregon Department of Justice to 
assist victims of domestic violence and sexual assault with housing needs until January 2, 2024. 
Appropriates an additional $5,000,000 out of the General Fund to assist victims of domestic violence 
and sexual assault with housing needs.  

o Legislators have requested $7.5 m in American Recovery Act funds for Hope Plaza.  
o This is in addition to the $2.5 m that was received last spring.  
o The $7.5 m will allow the Center for Hope and Safety to start building this fall.  
o Ms. Downing asked that the MCPSCC support these bills.  

 
• Alison Kelley, executive director, Liberty House said HB 2826 passed unanimously out of the House 

Committee on Human Services and was sent out to the Joint Committee on Ways and Means. Bill 
requires the Child Abuse Multidisciplinary Intervention Program within the Department of Justice 
(DOJ) to allocate funds to support local and regional child advocacy centers. Appropriates $6,000,000 
to DOJ for this purpose. Funds will help support 21 Child Advocacy Centers serving all of Oregon’s 36 
counties and approximately 8,000 kids annually. Although referrals are supposed to have decreased 
with COVID-19, in 2020 Liberty House saw more than 700 youth in the clinic, the most they have ever 
seen. With youth restarting school, Liberty House is expecting to see even more youth needing 
services.  

  
• Ms. Shaney Starr, executive director, Marion County Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) said 

HB 2738 is a statewide CASA bill which appropriates to the CASA Fund: $5,670,000 for the CASA 
Volunteer Program, and $250,000 for the Oregon CASA Network for a statewide distance training and 
learning program. For Marion County, this would mean an additional $100,000 per year. These are 
two bills combined into one.  

 
• Marion County Health and Human Services Administrator Ryan Matthews said his office was watching 

the aid and assist bills. A large number of behavioral health bills are in play which could impact funding 
and what the courts are able to do. 

• County trying to free up hospital beds so that these are only reserved for those truly in need. Concerned 
that all the investments state made in past to improve systems are now unravelling, for example, with 
the passage of Measure 110. County has been innovative in making improvements, for example, using 
funds technically earmarked for mental health services for paying the salary of a district attorney in the 
county District Attorney’s Office to help with aid and assists. Very creative and only done in Marion 
County. If funding is reduced concerned what would happen to those aid and assists who cannot get 
treatment and will end up on the public safety side instead of the health and human services side where 
they can be treated.   

 
• Commissioner Cameron said Tim Murphy was unable to attend the meeting today but wanted to bring up 

HB 2417. Bill requires Department of Human Services to administer a program to provide matching 
grants to cities or counties to operate mobile crisis intervention teams. Marion County has four crisis 
intervention teams operating in the county, and these are different from the CAHOOTs model out of 
Eugene. Each county team is comprised of a law enforcement officer and a qualified mental health team 
worker.  HB 2417 would pair a nurse with a Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders 

23



provider. It is challenging for counties to find the staff to do this, so concerned about how viable this 
model will be. Also unclear what types of medical interventions the Cahoots team is doing out in the field 
right now. A lot of requirements need to be met before this type of proposed program can start.  

 
6. OVERVIEW OF PUBLIC SAFETY DURING 3 EMERGENCIES 
• Mr. Troy Gregg said he was very proud of his employees who helped out at the state fairgrounds during 

the wildfire evacuation and during the ice storm.  
o The Juvenile Department distributed wood to those in need and did a lot of clean up around 

town with work crews.  
 Because of COVID-19 the department has seen fewer referrals.  

• Frustrating that staff have been unable to meet with families and youth.  
• Racial issues and disparities has impacted the Juvenile Department and it will be 

reaching out internally and externally to work with others.  
• Salem Police Chief Trevor Womack said as new resources become available there are gaps that need 

to be filled such as the need for sobering centers.  
• For Salem this topic has come up in the past.  
• Mr. Tim Murphy may have wanted to bring this up personally at the meeting today. Renewed interest 

in this center. Chief Womack said that while this may benefit the community there are challenges 
around creating mobile crisis response teams.  

• He has always been about not sending out officers on calls for service that officers don’t really need to 
attend to.  

• City of Hubbard Police Chief David Rash said the city was not prepared for some things during the 
emergencies, but, on the other hand, there was no uptick in crime and officers were able to check the 
city’s vulnerable population.   

• Chief Daniel said many smaller communities were not as well prepared. So learnt a lot and doing some 
work to better plan ahead.  

• Woodburn Hubbard Fire Chief Joe Budge said a countywide communications initiative will benefit all 
the fire agencies in the county.  

• Sheriff Kast said the relationships his office has been building for years enabled his department (and 
the county) to successfully continue providing services during the three emergencies. At night of the 
fire other agencies entrusted the Sheriff’s Office to take charge.  

• Commissioner Cameron said this has been a long year for all. Today everyone has a better 
understanding of what the Marion County Health and Human Services Department Public Health 
Services Division does. County and representatives of the BIPOC community are also meeting on a 
weekly basis as a result of these emergencies.   

• Rob Carney, councilor, City of Woodburn said the city’s emergency plan is 12 years old. Plan was 
underwritten to a large extent but city was able to upgrade it in real life during the three emergencies. 
Had great working relationship with health care providers police, public works, fire departments and 
Pacific Gas and Electricity. Paid off in the end. A lot of damage. Encourage all the cities to work with 
police and fire departments to develop an emergency management plan that is effective. 

 
6. EMERGING ISSUES/OTHER BUSINESS 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
     
 
     
   

 

24



Section 4 

APRIL 28, 2021 

DRAFT MCPSCC MEETING MINUTES 

25



SPECIAL MEETING  
MARION COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATING COUNCIL 

Minutes 
April 28, 2021 4:00 PM 

Courthouse Square 
Salem, OR 

MCPSCC: Chris Baldridge, John Bauer, Mark Caillier, Kevin Cameron, Rob Carney, Paige Clarkson, 
Jayne Downing, Troy Gregg, Roland Herrera, Linda Hukari, Ryan Matthews, Pete 
McCallum, Todd McCann, Ed McKenney, Tim Murphy, Tracy Prall, Tom Sermak, Jeffrey 
Wood, Hitesh Parekh (recorder).   

GUESTS: Chad Ball, Danielle Bethell, Mark Daniel, and Kevin Karvandi 

1. ADMINISTRATIVE (INFORMATION/ACTION)
Meeting called to order at 4:05 P.M. by Commissioner Kevin Cameron. 

Welcome and introductions 
• Commissioner Cameron welcomed council members including newly appointed members

Hubbard Police Chief David Rash and Oregon State Police Lieutenant Chris Zohner.
• Commissioner Cameron said the meeting is a special meeting of the MCPSCC to review the

recently released 2021-23 Justice Reinvestment Initiative (JRI) Grant Application by the Oregon
Criminal Justice Commission.

• Ms. Jayne Downing announced that six legislators have made the Hope Center Plaza a priority
with funding from the American Rescue Act funds. If all goes well will, the Center will be able to
start building the Plaza (which includes services and housing) this fall.

• Mr. Roland Herrera announced that the fourth annual Salem Keizer School District Latino
scholarship awards will be held on May 4. He is proud of the students who have excelled this
year.

2. Overview of Justice Reinvestment in Oregon
Staff to the council presented this item. Summary of presentation: 

• The state’s Criminal Justice Commission has released the 2021-23 JRI grant application.
• There are eight new members on the MCPSCC who have not gone through a justice

reinvestment grant application process before. For their benefit a PowerPoint presentation has
been created to explain what justice reinvestment is and how it works in Oregon.

o Justice reinvestment is about not sending non-violent offenders to state prison and
state giving back counties the money saved to reinvest in their community corrections
programs.

o Each biennium all 36 counties have to apply for these grant funds.
o Programs approved for funding must be evidence based and reduce recidivism and

divert non-violent offenders from state prisons.
o 10% of the funds must be used for victim services and 3% to evaluate JRI programs

statewide.
o First time state issued a request for grant proposals was in 2015. This was the fourth

time Marion County will apply for funds. County receives roughly $4 M per biennium.
• Local Public Safety Councils are mandated to develop and approve the county’s justice

reinvestment grant program.
• This new 2021-23 JRI grant application has been modified from the prior biennium.

26



• Now a two-stage application.
o Preliminary application is due May 14 and final application is due August 25.
o All applicants will have to respond to cultural responsiveness in their programs.

 Imbedding equity throughout the county’s criminal justice system.
 Looking at establishing a process to assess populations served by justice

reinvestment grant funding.

3. 2021-23 JUSTICE REINVESTMENT GRANT APPLICATION OVERVIEW (INFORMATION/ACTION)
Marion County Sheriff’s Office Parole and Probation Division Commander Kevin Karvandi provided a 
historical overview of community corrections in Oregon. Summary of presentation: 

o Each county in Oregon is responsible for community corrections. Local counties must house
offenders sentenced to one year or less.

o Seventeen counties operate their own community corrections programs under their
respective Sheriff’s Offices.

o Linn and Douglas counties opted out of this agreement and are under the purview of the
Oregon Department of Corrections.

o Community Corrections uses a multitude of programs.
o There are 37 sworn community corrections deputies in the county’s Parole and Probation

Division responsible for more than 3,000 offenders who are on some form of supervision.
o The parole and Probation division pays a lot of attention to best practices.
o In 2011 the division began using Effective Practices in Community Supervision.
o This is a cognitive behavioral therapy approach to working with incarcerated or clients who

are on supervision.
o Goals of the Community Corrections Division compliment the goals of JRI which are to

reduce recidivism, hold offenders accountable, enhance public safety, and reduce the prison
population.

o Marion County received approximately $24M this biennium in state baseline funding for
community corrections programs. The $3.7 M that the county received in the 2019-21 JRI
grant funds supplements this baseline funding.
 Potential funding decrease for 2021-23 if legislature decreases either the baseline

funding or the JRI grant funding amount even though Marion County has
implemented evidenced based practices and decreased historical prison use.

 Graphs show that over the past ten years, statewide recidivism has increased but
decreased for Marion County.

o Staff asked that the council approve Issue Briefs 1 and 2.
 Issue Brief 1 is the grant application timeline and program funding parameters.
 Issue Brief 2 is the preliminary application for submission to the Oregon CJC
 If the CJC suggests changes to the preliminary application staff is requesting that the

Executive Committee of the council be the body that considers these changes and
makes any decisions necessary to continue moving the county’s application process
forward.

Summary of discussion: 
o Commissioner Cameron said that Marion County has consistently demonstrated it can

reduce recidivism and contributions to the prison population, and so for the state to reduce
baseline funding was not appropriate.

o Marion County District Attorney Paige Clarkson said while she did not have any concerns
about the JRI programs, the application requires that the District Attorney make a statement
of commitment to the initiative. Most district attorneys don’t feel that committing to
reducing the prison population is their first and foremost mandate. Their mandate is public
safety, and the work done in Marion County which has reduced the prison population is the

27



by-product of the excellent programs developed by Marion County. District attorneys have 
had to wordsmith the letter of commitment over the years because the application appears 
to be pushing counties solely towards achieving a metric, when in reality, Marion County’s  
prison reductions are a by-product of running effective programs.  

o MOTION: Ed McKenney made a motion to approve Issue Brief #1 or the 2021-23 JRI grant
application timeline and program funding parameters. Jayne Downing seconded. Motion
passes unanimously.

o MOTION: Tim Murphy made a motion to approve Issue Brief #2 or the preliminary 2021-23
JRI grant application submission to the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission. Jayne Downing
seconded. Motion passes unanimously.

4. OTHER BUSINESS
Marion County Specialty Courts 
Marion County Circuit Court Presiding Judge Tracy Prall brought up this item. Summary of presentation: 

• There are five specialty courts in Marion County and these are an important part of our public
safety system. These are the Adult Drug, Fostering Attachment Treatment, Mental Health,
Juvenile Drug and Veterans Treatment Courts.

• Courts are administered by the Marion County Health and Human Services Department (HHSD)
which also provides treatment services for defendants.

o Courts were informed by the HHSD that due to a conflict of interest and lack of
adequate financial reimbursement, the Health and Human Services Department would
need to withdraw from partnering with the court.

o As per the grant requirements, the local public safety coordinating council must
determine which county department can administers the specialty court grant.

o Judge Prall requested that the council determine who should administrator the specialty
courts should the HHS opt out.

o This needed to be resolved expeditiously since the Oregon Judicial Department had to
approve the grant application by May 21.

o Commissioner Cameron mentioned that an internal meeting had been set up to discuss
the grant administrator role, after which the Executive Committee would convene for a
special meeting to approve the grant application and move it forward.

• Commissioner Cameron thanked Mr. John Bauer and Salem Health for its work in vaccine
distribution.

   ADJOURNED 

28



Section 5 

ISSUE BRIEF # 3  

INCLUDES 2019-21 PROGRAM PERFORMANCE 

&  

2021-23 JRI GRANT FUNDING PROPOSALS  

29



M A R I O N  C O U N T Y

Justice Reinvestment Initiative  
2019-21 PERFORMANCE PORTFOLIO 

& 2021-23 FUNDING RECOMMENDATIONS 
DRAFT 

INTRODUCTION

The Oregon Criminal Justice Commission administers Oregon’s Justice Reinvestment Initiative. House Bill 3194 (2013) 
requires that applications be submitted by each county’s local public safety coordinating council. The Marion County 
Public Safety Coordinating Council has been working diligently to assess local needs and services, develop criteria, 
review funding requests, prioritize programs, and prepare the 2021-23 grant application.  Marion County received 
$3,771,026 for the 2019-21 biennium for nine programs. For 2021-23, Marion County will receive $4,186,797. This 
brief provides a snapshot of performance over the past 24 months and makes recommendations for the 2021-23 
biennium. Also included in the 2021-23 JRI request for grant proposals are statewide supplemental grant funds of 
$7,578,844 to support downward departure prison diversion programs. Marion County is requesting $917,435.48 in 
supplemental grant funds.   

OVERVIEW

Oregon’s Justice Reinvestment Initiative supports the following goals: (1) Reduce recidivism while protecting public 
safety and holding offenders accountable; and (2) Decrease the county’s utilization of imprisonment in a Department 
of Corrections institution while protecting public safety and holding offenders accountable. In order to be considered 
for justice reinvestment funding in 2021-23, a program must: 1) Assess populations served by JRI funding; (2) Serve 
offenders charged with or convicted of property, drug, or driving offenses; 3) Consider and accept short-term 
transitional leave candidates as appropriate; 4) Provide assistance to clients enrolling in the Oregon Health Plan 
and utilize treatment providers that accept the Oregon Health Plan; and 5) Work towards imbedding equity 
throughout the county’s criminal justice system. In April 2021, the public safety council reaffirmed parameters or 
criteria for prioritizing services to be included in the 2021-23 Justice Reinvestment Initiative Grant Application. As of 
June 30th, 2021, 3,103 unduplicated individuals were served by the SB 416, SOAR, Transition from Jail to Community, 
Link Up, substance abuse treatment, housing subsidy, and De Muniz Resource Center programs.  

Parameter 1: Services considered for funding must be evidence based. 
Parameter 2: Existing services funded with Justice Reinvestment funds and demonstrating results in achieving Justice 
Reinvestment goals will have highest priority for funding at current service level; i.e., allowing appropriate 
adjustments for cost of living and other personnel and materials costs needed to sustain the program in the upcoming 
year.  
Parameter 3: If additional Justice Reinvestment funds become available, funds to fill gaps in or otherwise enhance 
existing services, or to create new services, will be considered equally, assuming Parameter 1 is met. The council will 
analyze the potential of each proposed new or enhanced service to achieve Justice Reinvestment goals. 

ISSUE BRIEF # 3 

30



Parameter 4:  For worthy public safety programs not funded in the Justice Reinvestment plan, the council will explore 
alternative funding options, leverage community engagement, and assist partner organizations in seeking grants or 
other appropriations through letters of support and advocacy. 

2019-2021 SUMMARY and 2021-2023 PROPOSED ALLOCATIONS 

Program/Service 2019-21 
Target 

Numbers of 
Clients 

2019-21 
Actual 

Numbers 
Served 

2019-21 
Approved 
Allocation 

2019-21 
Projected 

Expenditures 

2019-21 
Projected 
Unspent 

Funds 

2021-23 
Proposed 
Allocation 

1. SB 416 Prison
Diversion
Program

60 48 $1,308,124 $1,308,124 $0 
$1,378,878 

2. Transition
from Jail to
Community
(TJC) Program

500 1,069 $767,452 $767,452 $0 $ 811,147 

3. Marion
County Adult
Specialty
Courts

240 138 $20,000 $20,000 $0 $20,000 

4. Link Up 120 40 $146,909 $146,909 $0 $105,000 

5. SOAR 120 73 $415,424 $415,424 $0 $414,140 

6. De Muniz
Resource
Center

1,500 1,629 $200,000 $200,000 $0 $270,000 

7. Transition
Services/
Housing

120 284 $117,923 $117,923 $0 $ 233,388 

8. Substance
Abuse
Treatment

500 713 $ 304, 960 $ 304, 960 $0 $ 304,960 

9. Victim
Services
(required
10%)

Not specified N/A $377,103 $377,103 $0 $ 418,680 

10. Peer Support
Program1 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $105,000 

Statewide 
Evaluation 
(required 3%) 

N/A N/A $113,131 $113,131 $0 $ 125,604 

Total $3,771,026 $3,771,026 $0 $ 4,186,797 

Unspent 
17-19 Funds 

$91,444 $0 

8 programs with 
projected 
numbers2 

3,160 3,856 

1 New proposed program for 2021-23 by the Marion County Sheriff’s Office 
2Includes duplicated individuals across programs 

31



The following charts illustrate how Marion County’s strategies have achieved Oregon’s Justice Reinvestment goals.  

Support for adequate funding has been instrumental to the success of the Justice Reinvestment Initiative (JRI). Within 

Marion County alone, JRI has allowed us to expand and enhance prison diversion and reentry programs. From March 

2020 through March 2021, this resulted in a decrease in our prison utilization by 156,000 days (5,200 months) 

compared to the historical baseline. Additionally, program supports contributed through JRI have allowed Short-Term 

Transitional Leave (STTL) to save 94,166 prison bed days (3,139 months), with a 94% successful completion rate. In 

addition to reducing Marion County’s overall prison bed usage, Marion County has seen a 43% reduction in the 

number of Measure 57 property crime probation revocations and a 50% reduction in the number of drug crime 

revocations from 2014 - 2020.  The magnitude of these reductions was made possible through evidence-based 

program selection and design.  

Since the implementation of evidence-based practices as required through Senate Bill 267 (2003), Marion County has 

seen an overall downward trend in recidivism as it relates to new arrest, new conviction, and/or new incarceration of 

community corrections clients supervised for property, drug, and driving offenses. In comparison, statewide there has 

been a slight increase in arrest and incarceration rates.  

Recidivism rates across all three measures reached their lowest point between 2008 and 2009. The second cohort of 

2016 saw a sharp increase for all three measures, before lowering again in the first cohort of 2017. With that being 

said, over the past ten years, recidivism rates for property, drug, and driving offenses have little variation: arrest rates 

vary by up to 5.3%, conviction rates by up to 7.7%, and incarceration rates by up to 3.3%.  

The arrest rate for the first cohort of 2017 was 51.7% (compared to 55.0% statewide), the conviction rate was 40.8% 

(compared to 45.3% statewide), and the incarceration rate was 16.5% (compared to 15.1% statewide). 

Chart 1:  Marion County One Year Rolling Sum of Prison Usage Compared to Baseline 

32



Chart 2:  Marion County Short Term Transleave (STTL) Summary 

Chart 3:  Marion County Recidivism Rates 

33



SB 416 PRISON DIVERSION 
 
 
Target Population: Non-violent property and drug offenders with medium to high criminogenic risks factors, who 
have historically been sentenced to state prison.      
 

 Annual Target  
Number of new cases 

Number of New Cases  
in 2019-20 

Number of New Cases  
in 2020-21 

 

 30 38 10  
 
Program Description: The Senate Bill 416 Prison Diversion Program develops and implements evidence-based 
strategies to improve probationer supervision and reduce recidivism. An evidence-based sentencing program 
employing risk/needs assessment, the program works in partnership with the District Attorney’s Office and the courts; 
provides evidence-based cognitive, motivation, substance abuse treatment and mentoring services; and ensures 
coordinated delivery of client services through the appropriate level of case management.  
 
Grant Funds: Justice Reinvestment funds support a 1.0 FTE treatment counselor and 1.0 FTE professional mentor at 
Bridgeway Recovery Services, 2.0 FTE Parole and Probation Deputies, a Deputy District Attorney, supplies, 
transportation, and funding for five jail beds. Total 2019-21 allocation is $1,308,124 from JRI funding and $628,779 
from supplemental funding.  Proposed 2021-23 allocation is $1,378,878 from JRI funding and $825,691.93 from 
supplemental grant funding. 
 

Data Reported to CJC 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6  Q7 Q8 

No. of new clients sentenced to 
SB 416 program 

11 14 7 6 2 4 3 1 

No. of new and existing clients 
receiving SUD treatment1 

19 24 26 27 22 15 16 12 

No. of new and existing clients 
successfully completing SUD 
treatment within the quarter 

0 1 1 0 1 1 0 0  

% of new clients referred for 
employment assistance 

38% 38% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100% 

No. of new clients revoked 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 

No. of new clients revoked for 
new crimes 

0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 

 
Analysis:  SB 416 services have had an impact on Marion County’s continued improvement in meeting prison 
diversion targets; as of May 2021, supervising the clients sentenced to the SB416 program during the 19-21 biennium 
in the community translates to 20,261 prison bed days avoided. The primary substance abuse treatment provider for 
the program has been evaluated using the Correctional Program Checklist and was determined to have “very high” 
adherence to evidence-based practices.  
 
The COVID-19 outbreak in March 2020 impacted the delivery of SB 416 programming. The Marion County District 
Attorney’s Office continued to refer qualifying individuals for the SB 416 program; however,  many of the individuals 
referred are still pending sentencing. When public health guidelines restricted substance abuse treatment staff from 
meeting with SB 416 program participants in person, services were provided via phone and video. 
 
Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

1 Data reflects unduplicated clients within a quarter, but may be duplicated across quarters. 

34



TRANSITION FROM JAIL TO COMMUNITY (TJC) PROGRAM 

Target Population: Medium to high risk men and women housed at the Marion County Transition Center serving 
either a Marion County sentence or a structured sanction.   

Annual Target 
Number to Serve 

Number Served 
in 2019-20 

Number Served 
in 2020-21 

250 178 955 

Program Description:  Utilizing the Transition from Jail to Community (TJC) model developed by the National Institute 
of Corrections, the goal of the TJC Program is to reduce the number of individuals returning to jail by providing 
targeted transition planning and pre-release services, including cognitive skills classes, to Adults in Custody at the 
Marion County Transition Center.  

Grant Funds: Justice Reinvestment funds support two deputy positions at the Transition Center (a Transition Center 
counselor and a Transition Services PO), 1.3 FTE cognitive skills facilitators from The Pathfinder Network, and supplies 
for the Transition Center. Total 2019-21 allocation is $767,452. Proposed 2021-23 allocation is $ 811,147.  

Data Reported to CJC2 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6 Q7 Q8 

No. of transition plans developed 0 0 12 45 49 39 31 16 

No. of individuals attending in-
custody services 

0 17 102 112 190 389 365 359 

No. of individuals attending 
cognitive skills classes 

0 8 81 18 75 107 78 46 

Analysis:  The Transition from Jail to Community (TJC) Program was a new addition to Marion County’s menu of JRI 
funded programs in 2019-2021. Staff began piloting program services in October of 2019, and full implementation 
began in January 2020.  

Following the COVID-19 outbreak in March 2020, the Marion County Transition Center reduced its maximum capacity 
from 144 to 60 to allow for appropriate social distancing amongst the Adults in Custody (AICs). As a result of this 
reduced capacity, there have been fewer individuals at the Transition Center to receive TJC program services.  

Throughout the COVID-19 outbreak, the Transition Services PO and Transition Center counselor continued to provide 
individual sessions, transition planning, and connected AICs to available community resources. 

The Pathfinder Network continued to provide services throughout the pandemic. When public health guidelines 
restricted in person classes at the Transition Center, staff provided individual services to the AICs via phone. Beginning 
in June 2020, Pathfinders was able to resume some in person services with group sizes limited so that social distancing 
guidelines could be observed.  

Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

2 Data is unduplicated within a quarter, but may be duplicated across quarters. 

35



MARION COUNTY SPECIALTY COURTS 
 
 
Target Population: Non-violent misdemeanor and felony drug offenders who possess medium and high criminogenic 
risk factors.      
 

 Annual Target  
Number to Serve 

Number Served  
in 2019-20 

Number Served  
in 2020-21 

 

 

120 

Adult Drug Court- 38 Adult Drug Court- 22   

 Veterans Treatment Court- 9  Veterans Treatment Court- 8   

 Mental Health Court- 23  Mental Health Court- 23   

 Fostering Attachment- 9  Fostering Attachment- 6   
 
Program Description: Marion County’s adult specialty courts include Adult Drug Court, Veterans Treatment Court, 
Mental Health Court, and Fostering Attachment Treatment Court. Each specialty court is designed to facilitate treatment 
and rehabilitation. The programs combine court concepts with integrated human services to provide meaningful 
interventions to these individuals and their families. 
 
Grant Funds:  Justice Reinvestment funds provide program supports in the form of client rental assistance (for up to 90 
days) and vouchers redeemable for job/interview clothing. Total 2019-21 allocation is $20,000.  Proposed 2021-23 
allocation is $20,000. 
 

Data Reported to CJC3 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6 Q7 Q8 

No. of Adult Drug Court 
participants receiving program 
supports 

0 0 0 0 0 0 23 6 

No. of Veterans Treatment Court 
participants receiving program 
supports 

0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 

No. of Mental Health Court 
participants receiving program 
supports 

0 0 0 0 0 0 3 1 

No. of Fostering Attachment 
Treatment Court participants 
receiving program supports 

0 0 1 0 0 3 31 1 

 

Analysis:  Participants in all of Marion County’s adult specialty courts undergo an intense regimen of substance 
abuse and/or mental health treatment, case management, drug testing, and probation supervision while reporting 
to regularly scheduled status hearings before a judge. As participants engage in the specialty court process, having 
access to safe and supportive housing can be crucial to program success. Supports provided through JRI helped 
participants access and maintain housing. After specialty court participants achieve a period of sobriety, they work 
towards obtaining meaningful employment. Support provided through JRI helped participants with clothing needed 
for job interviews and/or work.  
 
Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

 

  

3 Data is unduplicated within a quarter, but may be duplicated across quarters. 

36



LINK UP 

Target Population: High and medium-risk males with co-occurring substance abuse and mental health disorders who 
are releasing from prison to Marion County.      

Annual Target 
Number to Serve 

Number Served 
in 2019-20 

Number Served 
in 2020-21 

50 40 21 

Program Description: Link Up provides mentoring services that support successful reentry for clients with co-
occurring disorders. Professional mentors contact individuals four months prior to prison release and help clients 
transition to outpatient treatment services in the community. Mentors continue to support clients post release, 
including the duration in which clients receive substance abuse and mental health treatment.  

Grant Funds: Justice Reinvestment funds support 1.0 FTE mentor at Bridgeway Recovery Services. Total 2019-21 
allocation is $146,909. Proposed 2021-23 allocation is $105,000. 

Data Reported to CJC 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6 Q7 Q8 

No. of individuals enrolled in 
program4 

19 11 21 13 2 0 0 0 

No. of individuals successfully 
completing pre-release services 

4 2 7 4 2 0 0 0 

Avg. pre-release mentor contacts 
per client 

7 6 5 3 4 0 0 0 

Analysis:  In 2019-21, JRI funding supported a mentor position for Link Up. Oregon Health Plan and other treatment 
program funding was leveraged to support outpatient treatment services for participants upon release. As a result, in 
2019-21, Link Up services focused on pre-release mentor services for medium-high risk males with co-occurring 
disorders releasing from Department of Corrections (DOC) facilities. During the biennium, forty individuals engaged in 
services with a mentor prior to releasing from custody.  

Following the COVID-19 outbreak in March 2020, all DOC facilities closed to external visitors. While unable to have in-
person contact with program participants, the Link Up mentor maintained phone contact with participants housed at 
Oregon State Correctional Institution (OSCI) prior to their release. 

Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

4 Data is unduplicated within a quarter, but may be duplicated across quarters. 

37



STUDENT OPPORTUNITY FOR ACHIEVING RESULTS (SOAR) 

Target Population: High-risk male clients with substance abuse issues and high criminogenic needs. Because of local 
funding parameters, SOAR participants must have a history of or current property crime charge.     

Annual Target 
Number to Serve 

Number Served 
in 2019-20 

Number Served 
in 2020-21 

60 49 26 

Program Description: SOAR is an intensive twelve-week program delivered on the Chemeketa Community College 
campus and serves up to thirty participants per cohort. While in SOAR, individuals participate in evidence-based 
cognitive and motivational programs, relationship skills classes, mentoring, and addictions treatment. Interventions 
are delivered in a group setting.   

Grant Funds: Justice Reinvestment funds support 2.0 FTE Chemeketa Community College employment staff that serve 
within the SOAR program team and 0.14 FTE Program Coordinator. Total 2019-21 allocation is $415,424. Proposed 
2021-23 allocation is $414,140 and $91,444 in 2017-19 unspent funds. 

Data Reported to CJC 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6 Q7 Q8 

No. of individuals enrolled in 
program 

29 17 20 0 16 16 10 10 

No. of individuals successfully 
completing program  

6 8 6 0 0 12 0 9 

No. of UAs administered 107 135 106 8 156 33 25 94 

SOAR Program Enrollment SOAR 33 SOAR 34 SOAR 35 SOAR 36 SOAR 37 Total 

Number of clients enrolled 12 17 20 16 10 75 

Number of clients graduated 6 8 6 12 9 41 

% graduated 50% 47% 30% 75% 90% 55% 

Analysis:  Recidivism data for the first 29 cohorts of the SOAR program indicate the overall program is effective at 
reducing future criminal behavior. When compared to other high-risk male PPS clients on supervision in Marion 
County, SOAR graduates were 30.2% less likely to be arrested for a new offense, 12.7% less likely to be convicted of 
any new crimes (misdemeanor or felony), 16.4% less likely to be convicted of a new felony, and 9.4% less likely to 
have a new incarceration. The program has been evaluated using the Correctional Program Checklist and was 
determined to have “very high” adherence to evidence-based practices. 

Following the COVID-19 outbreak, the SOAR program had to make service delivery adjustments to be in adherence 
with public health guidelines. When COVID-19 restrictions prohibited in person meetings, staff maintained weekly 
contact with program participants via phone and video platforms.  When the program resumed in person activities in 
July of 2020, the number of participants allowed in the program was restricted so that social distancing guidelines 
could be observed. 

Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

38



DE MUNIZ RESOURCE CENTER 
 
 
Target Population: Post-prison supervision and probation clients.     
 

 Annual Target  
Number to Serve 

Number Served 
 in 2019-20 

Number Served 
 in 2020-21 

 

 750 1,210 604  
 
Program Description: The De Muniz Resource Center is a one-stop center designed to improve access to resources and 
provide direct services to individuals supervised by Marion County Community Corrections Division. The Center is 
located on site at the Marion County Transition Center and is operated by Mid-Willamette Valley Community Action 
Agency. The Center provides assistance in the form of one-on-one consultations, coaching on how to navigate and 
access local resources, and referrals for employment, education, obtaining identification, housing, child and family 
services, transportation, basic needs, legal issues, and health/mental health needs. 
 
Grant Funds: Justice Reinvestment funds support a portion of personnel costs needed to adequately operate the center.  
Total 2019-2021 allocation was $200,000. Proposed 2021-23 allocation is $270,000. 
 

Data Reported to CJC5 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6 Q7 Q8 

No. accessing navigator 1:1s 116 174 166 56 0 148 80 105 
No. accessing workshops 225 233 180 7 53 2 24 51 

No. accessing employment 
coaching 

129 142 111 3 18 2 20 39 

No. accessing OHP registration 
assistance 

155 178 153 22 114 59 99 119 

 
Analysis:  The De Muniz Resource Center  is a one-stop center for reentry clients to access resources, including those in 
custody at the Marion County Transition Center and individuals in the community.  Resource center staff offer individual 
appointments for both Adults In Custody (AICs) at the Transition Center and community clients to address barriers to 
successful reentry such as housing and employment. In addition, the De Muniz Resource Center provides a variety of in-
house classes and workshops, which focus on topics such as cognitive skills, employment resources, financial education, 
parenting skills, tenant education, GED tutoring, and substance abuse support groups. The Transition from Jail to 
Community (TJC) Program refers AICs for both individual assistance and classes at the Resource Center for assistance 
preparing for release.  
 
Following the COVID-19 outbreak, the De Muniz Resource Center had to make a variety of service delivery adjustments 
to be in adherence with public health guidelines. Beginning in March 2020, the Center was restricted from providing in 
person services and began providing services via phone. Starting in June 2020, the Center began providing limited in 
person services (both individual services and small groups that allow for social distancing guidelines to be maintained).  
 
Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

 

  

5 Data is unduplicated within a quarter, but may be duplicated across quarters. 

39



TRANSITION SERVICES/HOUSING 

Target Population: High and medium-risk clients on probation or post- prison supervision in need of pro-social and 
stable housing.     

Annual Target 
Number to Serve 

Number Served 
in 2019-20 

Number Served 
in 2020-21 

180 stipends 335 stipends 201  stipends 

60 people 198 people 113  people 

Program Description: Marion County Sheriff’s Office Community Corrections Division provides transitional housing 
stipends for up to 90 days. Each one-month stipend is estimated at $400. 

Grant Funds: Justice Reinvestment funds support up to 90 days of housing assistance for 60 new clients per year. Total 
2019-21 allocation is $117,923, funding approximately 360 one-month stipends. In addition, Marion County had 
$101,733 remaining from 2017-19. Proposed 2021-23 allocation is $ 233,388. 

Data Reported to CJC 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6 Q7 Q8 

No. of clients provided housing 
assistance6 

114 172 44 29 36 58 55 5 

No. of housing stipends given 167 83 50 35 43 76 75 6 

Analysis:  Housing is essential for community stability. Without housing, clients cannot focus on treatment and other 
remediation services. These funds support transitional housing stipends for rental assistance for high and medium-risk 
clients on probation or post-prison supervision. This funding has been crucial to providing pro-social stability for 
community corrections clients. With the unspent funds available from 2017-19, additional subsidy was available in 
quarter one and quarter two.  

Marion County continued to provide housing subsidy throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, however, from March 
through June 2020, many transitional housing providers did not accept new clients. 

Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

6 Data is unduplicated within a quarter, but may be duplicated across quarters. 

40



SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT 
 
 
Target Population: Clients supervised by the Marion County Sheriff’s Office who possess medium to high criminogenic 
risk factors, are in need of substance abuse treatment, and do not qualify for other Marion County Reentry Initiative 
treatment programs.    
 

 Annual Target  
Number to Serve 

Number Served  
in 2019-20 

Number Served  
in 2020-21 

 

 250 443 430  
 
Program Description: A minimum of 200-260 hours of cognitive-based services are provided to the target population. 
All services are directed at enhancing offender motivation, addressing addiction and criminogenic risk factors, and 
providing the behavioral skills to lead a clean and sober lifestyle.   
 
Grant Funds: Justice Reinvestment funds support the following positions at Bridgeway Recovery Services: 2.0 FTE 
Certified Drug and Alcohol Counselors and 0.5 FTE Professional Mentor. Total 2019-21 allocation is $304,960. 
Proposed 2021-23 allocation is $ 304,960. 
 

Data Reported to CJC 
2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q5 Q6  Q7 Q8 

No. of individuals receiving SUD 
treatment7 

230 223 198 201 211 211 208 186 

No. of individuals completing SUD 
treatment successfully during the 
reporting period 

37 29 21 29 25 36 21 24 

No. of UAs administered 201 196 174 7 6 9 7 79 

 
Analysis:  Substance abuse treatment allows clients who are not eligible for more intensive wraparound services, or 
who are unable to access programs due to limited program capacity, receive treatment through Bridgeway Recovery 
Services. These services provide a safety net for clients needing substance abuse treatment. This program increases 
treatment accessibility for clients who are pending OHP approval or are ineligible for OHP. On average, participants 
are enrolled in OHP within 27 days of being referred for services. The program has been evaluated using the 
Corrections Program Checklist and was determined to have “very high” adherence to evidence-based practices. 
 
Following the COVID-19 outbreak, Bridgeway Recovery Services had to make service delivery adjustments to be in 
adherence with public health guidelines. Bridgeway Recovery Services staff maintained contact with program 
participants via phone and virtual platforms. 
 
Executive Committee Recommendation:  Approve Program Funding 

 

  

7 Data is unduplicated within a quarter, but may be duplicated across quarters. 

41



10% SET ASIDE FOR VICTIM SERVICES 

Marion County’s collaborative victim services strategy closes critical gaps in services and was unanimously supported 
by the Marion County Public Safety Coordinating Council. Funding of $377,102 was shared in 2019-21 between two 
qualified nonprofit providers: The Center for Hope and Safety and Liberty House.   

Each provider is required to complete an annual report.  The following are highlights from the 2019-20 FY reports. 

CENTER FOR HOPE AND SAFETY (CHS)  

Target Population: Victims and survivors of domestic violence, sexual assault, stalking, and human trafficking. 

Program Description: Justice Reinvestment funds support a bilingual Intake Coordinator, an IT specialist, a HR 
manager, and direct assistance for survivors (identification, gas cards, bus tickets, prescriptions, etc.). 

2019-20 FY Highlights (1st Year):  

• The Intake Coordinator facilitated meetings and provided support to 7,367 individuals.

• Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, the Intake Coordinator worked to connect individuals to the Center for

Hope and Safety hotline and staff working remotely.

• The IT specialist met with survivors to assist with issues related to technology being utilized to perpetrate

abuse (e.g., hacking email/social media accounts, utilizing malware on a phone/tablet/computer to stalk a

survivor, etc.).

• Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, the IT specialist was available to ensure children at the shelter had

access to the technology needed to access remote schoolwork.

• Over the last several years, CHS has conducted outreach to more than 30 small/rural communities in Marion

County to increase capacity in areas where services are limited or difficult to access.

2020-21 FY Highlights (2nd Year):  

• Despite the challenges of the pandemic, CHS staff responded to more than 33,000 contacts to our program.

• CHS Advocates provided services 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

• In order to maintain physical distancing, CHS worked with hotels across the county to provide safe shelter for

survivors fleeing violence.

• During the height of the pandemic, CHS sheltered 14 families in hotels, in addition to all the families at our

congregate shelters. More than 45% of the families served were from Black, Indigenous, and People of Color

(BIPOC) communities.

• CHS utilized a variety of funding sources, including emergency pandemic-related funding, to help hundreds of

survivors find and/or maintain safe housing.

• CHS continues to look for ways to reach survivors in small and rural communities in Marion County. This year,
we contracted for a small office space in Woodburn to meet the needs of survivors in northern Marion
County.

42



 
 

LIBERTY HOUSE 
 
Target Population: Children who have suffered physical abuse, sexual abuse or neglect and their families. 
 
Program Description: Justice Reinvestment funds support six positions with the Hope and Wellness Program at 
Liberty House. The Hope and Wellness Program provides evidence based, trauma informed, mental health services 
including triage, assessments, individual, group, family and crisis services for victims of abuse and neglect. 
 
2019-20 FY Highlights (1st Year)   

• During FY 2019-20, the six therapists supported by Justice Reinvestment funding provided 2,718 individual 

therapy hours, 1,090 family therapy hours, 179 group therapy hours, and 288 hours of other counseling 

services to program participants.  

• During FY 2019-20, the six therapists supported by Justice Reinvestment funding assessed 142 new clients.  

• From May 2016 – June 2020, Liberty House Hope and Wellness Services has served 732 child and adult clients.  

• Grant funds have assisted in increasing staff to include a bilingual therapist and two bilingual support staff.  

• Staff continued to provide services throughout the COVID-19 pandemic through teletherapy and in person 

services delivered in accordance with public health guidelines.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020-21 FY Highlights (2nd Year) 

• During the FY 2020-21, the six therapists supported by Justice Reinvestment funding provided 2,981 individual 

therapy hours, 1,121 family therapy hours and 160 group therapy hours. 

• There were 127 new clients assessed during the FY 2020-21. 

• During FY 2020-21, Liberty House therapists provided trauma-focused therapy to a total of 345 children from 

Marion County. 

• 24 caregivers were able to complete the Trauma Informed Caregiver group training. 

• Grant funds continue to support increasing staff to meet community need which includes eight total therapists 

of which there is a bilingual therapist and two bilingual support staff. 

• Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, therapists provided services through both teletherapy and in person 
services delivered in accordance with public health guidelines. 

 

43



 

Section 6 

 

 

 

ISSUE BRIEF # 4  

SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET PROPOSAL  

FY 2021-23 JRI GRANT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

44



M A R I O N  C O U N T Y

Justice Reinvestment Initiative  
2021-23 SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET PROPOSAL 

DRAFT 

INTRODUCTION
The Oregon Criminal Justice Commission administers Oregon’s Justice Reinvestment Initiative. House Bill 3194 (2013) 
requires that applications be submitted by each county’s local public safety coordinating council. The Marion County 
Public Safety Coordinating Council has been working diligently to assess local needs and services, develop criteria, 
review funding requests, prioritize programs, and prepare the 2021-23 grant application.  Marion County received 
$3,771,026 for the 2019-21 biennium for nine programs. For 2021-23, Marion County will receive $4,186,797. In 
2017, HB 3078 created a competitive supplemental grant to support downward departure prison diversion 
programs. Also included in the 2021-23 JRI request for grant proposals are statewide supplemental grant funds of 
$7,578,844. Marion County is requesting $917,435.48 of these funds.  

OVERVIEW
Funding awarded under the supplemental Justice Reinvestment grant is limited to key personnel positions that 
increase local capacity to effective support downward departure prison diversion programs, including staff in: Public 
Defense Services, District Attorney’s Offices, Judiciary, and Community Corrections.  Funding may also be used for 
training directly related to the development or operation of the downward departure prison diversion program.  
Funding may not be used to support wrap around services or sanctions for program participants. In order to be 
considered for supplemental funding, programs must: (1) Identify specific eligible populations agreed upon by all 
stakeholders, including the district attorney’s office, the judiciary, and community corrections; (2) Use 
presentencing assessments to inform downward departure sentencing; (3) Establish regular communication 
regarding program participants progress, including collaboration on revocation decisions; (4) Use structured 
sanctions for all program participants; (5) Provide supervision, sanctions, and services appropriate to participants’ 
criminogenic risk and needs; (6) Aim to decrease county prison intakes, including revocation, for the target 
population; (7) Use to data to monitor and evaluate the program in order to improve program operations.  In 2019-
21, Marion County received $628,779 in supplemental funding to support personnel for the SB 416 program.  

See next page 

ISSUE BRIEF # 4 

45



2019-2021 SUMMARY and 2021-2023 PROPOSED GRANT ALLOCATIONS 

PROGRAM/SERVICE 

2019-21 
FORMULA 

GRANT 
ALLOCATION 

2019-21 
SUPPLEMENTAL 

GRANT 
ALLOCATION 

2019-21 
PROJECTED 
UNSPENT 

FUNDS 

2021-23 
Proposed 

Formula Grant 
Allocation 

2021-23 
Proposed 

Supplemental 
Grant Request 

SB 416 Prison 
Diversion Program $1,308,124 $628,779 $0 $1,378,878 $825,691.93 

Victim Services 
(required 10%) $377,103* $64,760.36 $0 $418,680* $91,743.55 

Total** $3,771,026 $693,539.58 $0 $4,186,797 $917,435.48 
*Represents 10% of full formula grant allocation, not just SB 416 program.
**Table not showing all formula grant allocated program funding amounts for 2019-21 or 2021-23.

46



Section 7 

NEW PROGRAM FUNDING REQUEST 

2021-23 JRI GRANT APPLICATION –  

MARION COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

47



2021- 23 JUSTICE REINVESTMENT INITIATIVE 

New Program Funding Request 

MARION COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

Peer Support Program  

Background 

With the passage of HB 3064 in 2019, the Legislature placed additional emphasis on promoting fairness and inclusion 

within Justice Reinvestment. As a result, beginning in 2021-23, to be considered for Justice Reinvestment funding, 

programs must work toward imbedding equity throughout the county’s criminal justice system (in addition to the program 

eligibility requirements established in previous biennia). This includes ensuring equitable access to programs and 

resources for historically underserved communities.1 

To help counties identify and assess racial/ethnic disparities at the local level, the Criminal Justice Commission produces 

an interactive equity data dashboard which displays the racial/ethnic makeup of a counties supervision population 

compared to the racial/ethnic makeup of the county as a whole. When the percentage of a given population is greater than 

the corresponding percentage of the general population, a disparity is indicated. This is illustrated on the dashboard by the 

presence of a vertical line within the bar chart for a specific population.  

Chart 1: 2015-2019 Race, Ethnicity, and Gender Demographic Dashboard for Marion County Males 

Chart 2: 2015-2019 Race, Ethnicity, and Gender Demographic Dashboard for Marion County Females 

To help further meet the goal of increasing access to programs and services for historically underserved 

communities, Marion County is proposing to create a new pilot program in the 2021-23 biennium, the Peer 

Support Program.  

1 As defined by the Criminal Justice Commission, historically underserved communities include “…Oregonians who are: Native Americans, 

members of Oregon’s nine federally recognized tribes, American Indians, Alaskan Natives; Black, Africans, African Americans; Latinx, Hispanic; 

Asian, Pacific Islanders; Immigrants, refugees, asylum seekers; undocumented, DREAMers; linguistically diverse; LGBTQ+; aging/older adults; 

economically disadvantaged; farmworkers, migrant workers; and those living in rural parts of the state. 48



Peer Support Program 

Target Population: The target population is medium-high risk clients who are experiencing challenges 

engaging in supervision, with a focus on individuals belonging to historically underserved communities. 

Program Description: The peer support program will help community corrections clients navigate local 

resources that promote successful reentry and completion of supervision. Mentors will provide individual 

support, service navigation, peer support groups, classes, and workshops, action planning, and more.  

Mentors will follow the core competencies for peer workers in behavioral health settings established by the 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Administration (SAMSHA) and best practices for providing mentor 

services. In addition, the program will follow guidelines for integrating mentors into existing evidence based 

community corrections programs developed through a collaboration between the Bureau of Justice Assistance 

and the National Reentry Resource Center.  

Program Goals: The goal of the Peer Support Program is to increase access to and engagement with programs, 

services, and resources (including housing, substance abuse and mental health treatment, etc.) among 

historically underserved communities, with the ultimate goal of increasing success on community supervision. 

By increasing access to existing evidence based programs and services, the program will help Marion County 

work towards the Justice Reinvestment goals of reducing recidivism and prison usage.  

Grant Funds: Proposed 2021-23 allocation is $105,000. 

49



Section 8 

10% VICTIM SERVICES FUNDING PROPOSALS 

50



Victims Services Narrative & Budget 

Victim Services Narrative # 1 
At least 10% of Justice Reinvestment grant funds must be allocated to community-based nonprofit victim services providers. 
Each victim services provider must complete a separate Victim Services 10% Narrative and Budget. 

Victim Services Contact 
Name: Jayne Downing 
Organization: Center for Hope and Safety 
Title: Executive Director 
E-mail: jayne@hopeandsafety.org 
Phone: 503-378-1572

Description of Provider 
Each community-based nonprofit victim services provider must have: 

• A documented history of effectively providing direct services to victims of crime;
• A mission that is primarily focused on providing direct services to victims of crime; and
• The capacity and specific training to effectively deliver direct services to victims of crime.

The Center for Hope & Safety (CHS) has been providing services to victims of sexual assault, domestic 
violence, stalking and human trafficking in Marion County for 48 years. To date, we have had more than 
500,000 contacts to our program. CHS has provided more than 157,000 nights of shelter to over 16,500 
children and adults and made presentations to more than 171,000 people in our community and throughout 
Oregon.  

The CHS mission is to provide a safe environment for survivors of sexual assault, domestic violence, stalking 
and human trafficking and to educate the community regarding victimization. We fulfill our mission by 
providing a 24-hour crisis line (in Spanish and English and 140 additional languages through the Language 
Line); emergency confidential shelter; emergency transportation; six support groups are typically provided 
(except during the height of the pandemic) in Spanish and English, in rural and urban areas (with childcare at 
no cost); walk-in advocacy services in downtown Salem; assistance with protection orders; accompaniment to 
hospitals, court, and other agencies; educational materials (in Spanish, English, Russian, Vietnamese, 
Chinese, large print, audio, Braille, and pictorials); and community education in Spanish and English. An 
office in Woodburn has just been added to expand our services to rural Marion County. 

The CHS staff is highly trained to provide direct, trauma-informed services to victims. Our Board, staff, and 
volunteers attend 50+ hours of initial training on the dynamics of interpersonal violence and additional topics, 
including suicide intervention, trauma, secondary trauma, crisis intervention, safety planning and much more. 
Staff and volunteers attend additional trainings to prepare them for working with trauma survivors. In 
addition, CHS staff share their expertise with other agencies and programs, providing trainings at no cost to 
thousands of community members each year. 

The CHS program and staff have been honored to receive numerous awards recognizing our work in 
providing quality services to victims and survivors of interpersonal violence in Oregon. 

51



Description of Proposed Services 
Explain how the proposed services will address the following criteria: 

• Need for the proposed services in the community targeting marginalized and underserved populations in the community;
• Access barriers, such as, but not limited to: language, literacy, disability, transportation, and cultural practices;
• Capacity increases for areas where services are difficult to access, limited, or nonexistent; and
• Trauma-informed interventions and services.

CHS will use the JRI 10% Victim Services funds to provide funding for direct service staff members 
(including bicultural/bilingual Intake Coordinator, IT Specialist, and supportive direct services such as 
providing bus passes, identification, medications, etc.  

The Intake Coordinator is the first person every survivor meets when they come through the door of our 
Advocacy office in downtown Salem. The Intake Coordinator sets the tone for the survivors' sense of comfort 
and safety from the very beginning. The Intake Coordinator quickly assesses the situation and escorts victims 
into confidential meeting rooms and identifies a Victim Services Advocate to meet with the individual or 
family. If children are present, the Intake Coordinator offers an iPad and headphones for the child(ren) or they 
may meet with the CHS Children's Advocate for services.  

Prior to the pandemic, more than 10,000 people a year walked into our Advocacy Office. While the number 
of people walking in during this time decreased significantly, the Intake Coordinator continued to provide 
services and also coordinated all the crisis line connections to advocates working remotely. At this time, we 
are back to normal operations and the Intake Coordinator is very busy providing services to survivors. The 
Advocacy Office is fully accessible and 1.5 blocks from the Transit Center. More than 40% of the CHS staff 
and volunteers are bicultural/bilingual in Spanish and other languages. In addition, if survivors need 
interpretive services in other languages, CHS will hire interpreters and/or use the Language Line services. At 
the Advocacy Office, survivors are also provided with personal care items they need (food, clothing, shoes, 
person hygiene items, etc.) and can also access computers and other resources.  

The IT Specialist is the other position partially funded by the JRI funding. The highly trained IT Specialist 
offers unique services to victims in our community. His expertise in computers and cyber-related safety 
planning allows him to offer specialized services to victims. He is able to examine victim's phones and 
computers to look for malware an abuser may have placed on the victim's electronic devices. He is also able 
to advise victims and survivors regarding the use of social media and how to keep their personal information 
protected going forward. In addition, he is a trained advocate, so he can provide supportive services to any 
male-identifying victims who prefer to meet with a male victim services advocate.  

CHS works hard to make sure we are removing barriers for marginalized and underserved communities in 
Marion County. Staff and volunteers have conducted outreach to thirty Marion County communities, meeting 
with survivors and placing our information brochures in different languages and formats throughout the area. 
Marion County has the distinction of having the largest number of incorporated cities of any Oregon county 
plus a number of unincorporated communities. These communities stretch to agricultural regions to the north 
and south (e.g., Woodburn, Donald, Aurora, St. Paul, Silverton, Jefferson) to the timber-dependent 
communities in the Santiam Canyon to the east (e.g., Stayton, Sublimity, Gates, Mill City, Idanha, Detroit), to 
the population centers along the Willamette River (e.g., Salem and Keizer).  

Each year, CHS typically services a higher percentage of children and adults of color than the census 
population rate. During the pandemic, more than 40% of those families we housed were from underserved 
and marginalized communities. This is due in large part to the outreach efforts of our bicultural/bilingual staff 
and volunteers prior to the pandemic. Survivors of color also spread the word we are a safe place to receive 

52



information and supportive services. Our staff and volunteers are able to meet with victims anywhere in 
Marion County 24-hours a day. If shelter is needed, transportation is provided to our confidential emergency 
shelter.   

Advocacy and support services are provided using a trauma-informed model, which is an evidence-informed 
practice in the victim services field. As funding allows, CHS will also address the emergent needs of victims 
of domestic and sexual violence in our community. Some examples include: 
• Bus tickets and gas vouchers (priority to individuals from rural Marion County where transportation can

be a barrier for victims);
• Assistance with prescriptions, glasses, and identification; and
• Assistance with measures to increase victim safety and self‐sufficiency (e.g., travel funds, security

deposits, lock changes.).

Justice Reinvestment Victims Services Budget 

County: Marion 

2021-2023 Victims Services Allocation: $209,340 

Personnel 
Personnel Category Description Monthly Wages 

(Salary + Fringe) 
Months Employed 

Position One Direct Service Intake Coordinator 
(.80 FTE) 

$3,770 24 

Position Two Direct Service IT Specialist (.70 
FTE) 

$3,550 24 

Position Three 
Position Four 
Position Five 
Position Six 
Position Seven 
Position Eight 
Position Nine 
Position Ten 

Total Personnel Budget: $175,680 

Contractual 
Contract Category Description # Units/Hours $ Per Unit/Hour 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 53



8. 
9. 
10. 

Total Contractual Budget: 

Rent & Utilities 
Description Amount 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 

Total Rent & Utilities Budget: 

Supplies 
Description # of Units $ Per Unit 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 

Total Supplies Budget: 

Travel and Training 
Description # of Registrations Registration Fee 

(Total) 
Travel Expenses 

1. 
2. 
3. 

Total Travel and Training Budget: 

Equipment 
Description # of Units $ Per Unit 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 

Total Equipment Budget: 

Administrative 54



Description Amount 
1. HR Manager (0.06 FTE) $348 x 24 months $8,352 
2. Executive Director (0.03 FTE) $348 x 24 months $8,352 

Total Administrative Budget: $16,704 

Other 
Description Amount 

1. Direct assistance for survivors Identification, gas cards, bus 
tickets, prescriptions, etc. 

$16,956 

2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 

Total Other Budget: $16,956 

Victim Services Budget # 1 Total: $ 209,340 

55



Victims Services Narrative & Budget 

Victim Services Narrative # 2 
At least 10% of Justice Reinvestment grant funds must be allocated to community-based nonprofit victim services providers. 
Each victim services provider must complete a separate Victim Services 10% Narrative and Budget. 

Victim Services Contact 
Name: Alison Kelley 
Organization: Liberty House 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
E-mail: akelley@libertyhousecenter.org 
Phone: 503-540-0407

Description of Provider 
Each community-based nonprofit victim services provider must have: 

• A documented history of effectively providing direct services to victims of crime;
• A mission that is primarily focused on providing direct services to victims of crime; and
• The capacity and specific training to effectively deliver direct services to victims of crime.

Justice Reinvestment funds will continue to support the Hope and Wellness Mental Health Program at Liberty 
House. Liberty House therapists provide triage, assessment, individual, family, group, and crisis services for 
children birth to age 21 and their families. The program employs eight therapists, including Licensed 
Professional Counselors, Licensed Clinical Social Workers and Clinical Social Worker Associates.  As a 
whole, the Hope & Wellness Program will serve more than 350 unduplicated children each year and more 
than 700 in the 2021-23 biennium. 

The mission of Liberty House is to provide excellence in the assessment, treatment, and prevention of child 
abuse, neglect, trauma, and grief in order to promote health and hope in children, youth, families and 
communities.  With very few exceptions, the children referred to Liberty House have been victims of crimes, 
and the goal of therapeutic intervention is to reduce the long-term harm from the victimization, help children 
build resilience, help parents cope with their own trauma, improve parent-child attachment and strengthen 
familial relationships when possible. The Hope & Wellness Program at Liberty House provides trauma-
focused counseling services for clients and families, using Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy 
(TF-CBT), an evidence-based approach.  This and other modalities which are utilized such as art therapy, 
play therapy, EMDR and PCIT increase hope in children and families and mitigate negative effects of adverse 
childhood experiences (ACES).    

Liberty House is a nonprofit child abuse assessment center located in Salem, offering a safe, comfortable, 
child-friendly environment for children and their families referred for concerns of abuse or neglect. In 
addition to therapy, core services include interviews, medical checkups and family support. Liberty House 
also provides prevention training and education throughout the community. Liberty House opened its doors in 
1999 and has seen more than 8,000 children in that time. The annual budget for Liberty House is more than 
$5 million. Liberty House has 45 employees including three board-certified pediatricians, three nurse 
practitioners, a physician’s assistant, licensed therapists, forensic interviewers, family support specialists, and 
community engagement staff. 

The Hope & Wellness Program at Liberty House was established in Spring 2016 to extend trauma-focused
services to children and families throughout the Willamette Valley. Referrals are generated through the 

56



Liberty House Clinic, Department of Human Services, law enforcement agencies, local Behavioral Care 
Network and other mental health service providers in the community. 

Hope & Wellness services include: 
Individual and Family Trauma-Focused Counseling: A collaborative process in which the therapist works 
with the child and family to identify goals and work toward achieving them in a supportive, comfortable 
environment.  The team specializes in complex trauma. 

Brief Therapy:  Clients have the option to receive brief therapy which is time limited to six sessions and 
focused on achieving short-term goals. 

Group Therapy:  A variety of group therapy options provide psychoeducation and process experiences and 
help build resiliency. 

Trauma-Informed Caregiver Group:  This group offers educational information about how trauma affects 
children and how caregivers can support them. 

Community Education and Consultation:  Therapists provide consultation to community partners regarding 
trauma. In addition, the program offers periodic educational seminars on issues related to parenting, safety, 
trauma, and development. 

Description of Proposed Services 
Explain how the proposed services will address the following criteria: 

• Need for the proposed services in the community targeting marginalized and underserved populations in the community;
• Access barriers, such as, but not limited to: language, literacy, disability, transportation, and cultural practices;
• Capacity increases for areas where services are difficult to access, limited, or nonexistent; and
• Trauma-informed interventions and services.

Marion County’s mental health providers and program managers, as well as primary care medical providers, 
law enforcement and Oregon Department of Human Services officials have consistently emphasized the 
severe lack of trauma-informed therapeutic resources for children and their families in Marion County. Lack 
of trauma-informed services means children and their families do not have access to the support they need to 
heal from abuse and severe trauma. Our number one priority has been increasing Liberty House’s capacity to 
provide these services. With eight therapists, including one bilingual/bicultural therapist, we continue to 
extend our services to underserved populations including Spanish-speaking and rural families. 

Trauma-focused Hope & Wellness services at Liberty House address language barriers by incorporating 
bilingual bicultural staff as well as using local translation and interpretive services for children and their 
caregivers. Our staff are deeply experienced in working with children and families for whom literacy is a 
challenge. Our facilities, including the Children’s Therapy Garden, are accessible to families with disabilities. 
Our therapists have significant experience working with children and families from multiple cultures, ethnic 
and religious backgrounds.  To overcome transportation challenges, we leverage local resources and assist 
clients with coordinating transportation to reduce this barrier to gaining access to treatment.  Finally, our 
therapists are highly committed to creating a strengths-based, welcoming, positive environment in order to 
destigmatize accessing mental health services. This is critically important when working with adolescents. 
The offices are welcoming, fresh, and provide a comforting look. The décor is child and family friendly, 
designed to calm those who enter. Our therapists are very strong in working with all ages of children, infants 
through early adults and are well connected in the treatment community. 57



Justice Reinvestment funding will support providing trauma-informed mental health services for families and 
children who have been victims of criminal child abuse, severe neglect, rape, trafficking and torture. The 
services for adults include family therapy, multifamily psychoeducation groups and parenting seminars for 
adult caregivers.  Youth may receive individual, family or group therapy.  The main Liberty House location is 
at 375 Taylor Street NE, centrally located near the Salem Parkway, near public transportation, close to 
Keizer, within 20 minutes of Woodburn, within 30 minutes of Stayton and Jefferson, and close to some of the 
poorest, neediest neighborhoods in Marion County.  Because this grant funding will partially support the 
Hope & Wellness program manager, it will make it possible for her to continue working with the Liberty 
House CEO to develop strategies for increasing service capacity in remote and underserved areas of Marion 
County.  This funding also supports access to treatment for patients who have no insurance.  We provide 
treatment for children and families who are unable to pay which is important in expanding access to services. 
 
The Hope & Wellness Program at Liberty House provides trauma-informed counseling services for clients 
and families, using Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT), an evidence-based approach. 
Highly appropriate for victims of crime, this trauma-informed approach reflects adherence to the following 
key principles: (1) safety; (2) trustworthiness and transparency; (3) peer support; (4) collaboration and 
mutuality; (5) empowerment, voice and choice; and (6) cultural, historical and gender issues. It is expected 
this grant will help serve 120 unduplicated children and their families each year.  The therapists will also 
oversee up to 120 referrals per year to external mental health providers. 
 
A traumatic event may be a single event, a series of events, or chronic, lasting stress. Trauma-informed 
services consider the events contributing to a trauma response, as well as the response itself. Furthermore, 
interventions are created in collaboration with the client and in consideration of the client’s identified needs, 
culture, and values.  
 
The Mental Health Program Manager and Therapists ensure that treatment services meet standard 
requirements based on the guidelines for treating basic and complex trauma. Services have been set up with 
advice and support from local therapists who provide trauma-informed care. Treatment objectives include 
helping victims and families heal from trauma and preventing further abuse in the family. Services also 
include oversight of referrals to external providers so families have needed help in navigating access to care. 
This component directly addresses the need for additional trauma-informed care for victims. 
 
Because the Hope & Wellness Services program is a program of Liberty House, it is connected to the child 
abuse multidisciplinary team for Marion County (See ORS 418.747, County Multidisciplinary Response 
Teams). That process allows for more seamless information sharing, with appropriate releases of information. 
For example, there was a case in which a very young child was severely victimized physically and sexually 
over an extended period of time and the child was provided assessment services at the Liberty House clinic. 
This child was referred to the Hope & Wellness Program. The therapist identified that the child needed to re-
experience contact with the investigating detective in order to help the child process what had happened.  The 
therapist, after seeking the appropriate permission from the caregiver, invited the detective into a therapy 
session. The child benefitted greatly from seeing the detective in plain clothes and in a calm, healing setting. 
As an aside, the detective benefitted greatly from seeing the child looking much healthier and happier. That is 
one example of how trauma-informed practice can help a child to rewire his or her response to extreme 
trauma and developed a greater sense of safety and trust in adults. This model has been used with other 
clients. Furthermore, Liberty House has already developed a very strong reputation with referring agencies 
such as law enforcement and Oregon Department of Human Services. 
 

 
 58



Justice Reinvestment Victims Services Budget 

County: Marion 

2021-2023 Victims Services Allocation: $209,340 

Personnel 
Personnel Category Description Monthly Wages 

(Salary + Fringe) 
Months Employed 

Position One Supervisor & 
Therapist 

Neda Grant, LPC 
Program Director 

$1,917.50 24 

Position Two Therapist Christin Farrell, LPC 
Therapist 

$1,806.27 24 

Position Three Therapist Amy Morris, LPC 
Therapist 

$1,806.27 24 

Position Four Therapist Karen Larson, LPC 
Therapist 

$1,788.38 24 

Position Five Therapist Maria Papa, LPC 
Therapist 

$1,159.34 24 

Position Six Therapist Ariahna Reed, 
CSWA/MSW 
Therapist 

$244.74 24 

Position Seven 
Position Eight 
Position Nine 
Position Ten 

Total Personnel Budget: $209,340 

Contractual 
Contract Category Description # Units/Hours $ Per Unit/Hour 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 
10. 

Total Contractual Budget: 
59



 
Rent & Utilities 

 Description Amount 
1.    
2.    
3.    
4.    
5.    

Total Rent & Utilities Budget:       
 
 
Supplies 

 Description # of Units $ Per Unit 
1.     
2.     
3.     
4.     
5.     

Total Supplies Budget:       
 
Travel and Training 

 Description # of Registrations Registration Fee 
(Total) 

Travel Expenses 

1.      
2.      
3.      

Total Travel and Training Budget:       
 
Equipment 

 Description # of Units $ Per Unit 
1.     
2.     
3.     
4.     
5.     

Total Equipment Budget:       
 
 
Administrative 

 Description Amount 
1.    
2.    

Total Administrative Budget:       
 
Other 60



Description Amount 
1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 

Total Other Budget:     

Victim Services Budget # 2 Total: $209,340 

61



Section 9 

CJC 2021-23 JRI GRANT SOLICITATION 

62



2021–2023 REQUEST for GRANT PROPOSALS (RFGP) 
APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS 

OREGON CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
 

JUSTICE REINVESTMENT 
GRANT PROGRAM 

 
 
 
 

CRIMINAL JUSTICE COMMISSION 
885 Summer St NE 
Salem, OR 97301 

 
 

PRELIMINARY APPLICATION DUE 
DATE: May 14, 2021, 1:00 PM (PDT) 

 
FINAL APPLICATION DUE DATE: 
August 25, 2021, 1:00 PM (PDT) 

63



Oregon Criminal Justice Commission 
The mission of the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission is to improve the legitimacy, efficiency, and effectiveness of 
state and local criminal justice systems. The agency is tasked with developing and maintaining a state criminal justice 
policy and a comprehensive long-range plan for a coordinated state criminal justice system that encompasses public 
safety, offender accountability, crime reduction and prevention, and offender treatment and rehabilitation (ORS 
137.656). 

 
Definitions 
As used in OAR 213-060-0010 to 213-060-0140, unless the context indicates otherwise: 
1. “Commission” means the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission. 
2. “Community-based programs” include: 

a. Work release programs; 
b. Structured transitional-leave programs; 
c. Evidence-based programs designed to reduce recidivism that include the balanced administration of sanctions, 

supervision, and treatment; 
d. Administering a reentry court under Section 29, Chapter 649, 2013 Oregon Laws; 
e. Specialty courts aimed at medium-risk and high-risk offenders; and 
f. Evidence-based policing strategies. 

3. “County” includes a regional collection of counties. 
4. “Grant Review Committee” means the Justice Reinvestment Grant Review Committee established under Section 53, 

Chapter 649, 2013 Oregon Laws. 
5. “Program” means a program that is cost-effective as defined in ORS 182.515(2), as that is an evidence-based 

program as defined in ORS 182.515(3), that is a program as defined in ORS 182.515(4), and that utilizes scientifically 
based research as defined in ORS 182.515(5). 

6. “Recidivism” has the meaning provided in ORS 423.557(1) (a). 
7. “Trauma informed services” means providing the foundation for a basic understanding of the psychological, 

neurological, biological, and social impact that trauma and violence have on individuals, while incorporating proven 
practices into current operations to deliver services that acknowledge the role that violence and victimization play in 
their lives. 

8. “Evaluations” means an assessment or study of sanctions, services, or programs funded in whole or in part by 
Justice Reinvestment Grant funds. This includes assessments of alignment with evidence-based practices; studies 
such as randomized controlled trials; quasi-experimental studies; and similar process and outcome methods, 
models, and approaches. 

 
Availability and Duration of Funding 
This is a one-time solicitation, offering support for 30 months, beginning July 1, 2021 and ending December 31, 2023. 
Grant award recipients may begin charging expenditures to the grant award beginning July 1, 2021. 

 
The Justice Reinvestment Program funding allotment will be determined in the 2021 Regular Session of the Oregon 
Legislative Assembly. Once these figures are determined, the CJC will release the funding allocations on the Justice 
Reinvestment Grant Program website. All awards are subject to the availability of appropriated funds and to any 
modifications or additional requirements that may be imposed by law. 

64

https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/jri/Pages/Grant-Programs.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/jri/Pages/Grant-Programs.aspx


Eligible Applicants 
Eligible applicants include Oregon counties that demonstrate strong collaborative partnerships with stakeholders and 
community partners. The Grant Review Committee will accept one applicant per county. The application must be 
submitted online by the Local Public Safety Coordinating Council (LPSCC) with the approval of the county governing 
body. 

 
LPSCCs may submit a multi-county application on behalf of a consortium of government and non-government partners 
to design and implement a strategy to further the goals of the region’s Justice Reinvestment efforts. For any regional 
approach, one county must serve as the main applicant for purposes of administering the grant agreement and 
managing sub-agreements. 

 
Deadlines 
All applications by the date and times stated on the front page of the Request for Grant Proposal. See “How to Apply” in 
Section VI for details. 

 
Contact Information 
For technical assistance with submitting an application, contact Angel Jenkins, Grant Coordinator, at (503) 991-
3290 or angel.pairan@oregon.gov. For questions about the grant, contact Ian Davidson, Justice Reinvestment 
Program Manager, at (503) 302-1990 or ian.davidson@oregon.gov.

65

mailto:angel.pairan@oregon.gov
mailto:ian.davidson@oregon.gov.


 

Contents 
1. Overview .............................................................................................................................................................. 5 

2. Program Goals ...................................................................................................................................................... 6 

3. Eligible Program Requirements ........................................................................................................................... 6 

4. List of Evidence-based Curriculums ..................................................................................................................... 6 

5. Unallowable Uses for Award Funds ..................................................................................................................... 7 

6. How to Apply ........................................................................................................................................................ 8 

7. Preliminary Application ........................................................................................................................................ 9 
7.1. Preliminary Application Contents ................................................................................................................................. 9 

7.2. Cover Sheet ................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

8. Final Application ................................................................................................................................................ 10 
8.1. Final Application Contents .......................................................................................................................................... 10 

8.2. Cover Sheet ................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

8.3. Narrative ..................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

8.4. Goals of Justice Reinvestment .................................................................................................................................... 11 

8.5. Cultural Responsiveness ............................................................................................................................................. 12 

8.6. Evidence of Collaboration in Planning and Implementation (300-word maximum) .................................................. 12 

8.7. Proposed Program Budget .......................................................................................................................................... 12 

8.8. Victim Services Narrative ............................................................................................................................................ 12 

8.9. Victim Services Budget ............................................................................................................................................... 13 

8.10. Evaluation Plan ....................................................................................................................................................... 13 

8.11. Racial and Ethnic Impact Statement ....................................................................................................................... 14 

9. Supplemental Grant Funds (Optional) ............................................................................................................... 14 
9.1. Overview of Justice Reinvestment Supplementary Grant Program ........................................................................... 14 

9.2. Supplemental Victim Services .................................................................................................................................... 14 

9.3. Program Performance Objectives ............................................................................................................................... 14 

9.4. How to Apply .............................................................................................................................................................. 14 

9.5. Allowable Uses ............................................................................................................................................................ 15 

9.6. Application Contents .................................................................................................................................................. 15 

10. Application Review and Award Decisions .......................................................................................................... 16 
10.1. Formula Grant Review Process ............................................................................................................................... 16 

10.2. Supplemental Grant Review Process ...................................................................................................................... 17 

66



10.3. Award Decisions and Protests ................................................................................................................................ 17 

10.4. Award Conditions ................................................................................................................................................... 17 

11. Monitoring and Reporting ................................................................................................................................. 17 
11.1. Award Conditions ................................................................................................................................................... 18 

11.2. Reporting ................................................................................................................................................................ 18 

12. Distribution of Funding ...................................................................................................................................... 18 

13. Grant Suspension or Termination ...................................................................................................................... 18 
 

67



1. Overview 
From 2000 to 2010, Oregon’s incarceration rate increased by nearly 50% growing to 14,000 adults in custody with 
a total biennial corrections budget of more than $1.6 billion. In response to this rapid growth, the bipartisan 
interagency Commission on Public Safety was convened to analyze state corrections and sentencing policies. The 
commission’s recommendations became the foundation for House Bill (HB) 3194,1 known as the Justice 
Reinvestment Act, which the Oregon Legislature passed in 2013. HB 3194 made several sentencing changes and 
created the Justice Reinvestment Grant Program with the goal of reducing prison populations, reducing recidivism, 
increasing public safety, and holding offenders accountable. 

 
The Justice Reinvestment Grant Program is Oregon’s proactive approach to spending resources more effectively by 
controlling prison growth and investing a portion of the avoided operational prison costs in the state’s local public 
safety systems. In the 2013–15 biennium, $15 million was distributed among all 36 counties to begin their justice 
reinvestment programs while the 2015–17 biennium grant program was funded in the amount of $38.7 million. 
For the 2017–19 biennium, the grant program was funded at $47.1 million (this included the $7 million to support 
downward departure programs from HB 30782 in 2017) while the 2019-2021 biennium was funded at $48.9 
million. 

 
Prior to the passage of HB 3194, the April 2013 corrections forecast estimated that Oregon should plan to house 
16,089 adults in custody in state prisons by July 1, 2021. The latest forecast, issued October 2020, calls for  13,383 
adults in custody by that same date, a reduction of 2,706 adults in custody. As a result of the slowing growth of the 
prison population, Justice Reinvestment is projected to result in more than $560 million in avoided costs for Oregon 
by the end of the 2021–23 biennium.3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 Oregon Legislature. 77th Assembly, HB 3194 (2013). 
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2013R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB3194/Enrolled (Accessed May 2019). 
2 Oregon Legislature. 79th Assembly, HB 3078 (2017). 
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2017R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB3078/Enrolled (Accessed March 2021). 
3 For more information on avoided cost see the full Cost Avoidance Report released January 2021. 
https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/CJC%20Document%20Library/HB3194CostAvoidanceReportJan2021.pdf (Accessed March 2021).

68

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2013R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB3194/Enrolled
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2017R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB3078/Enrolled
https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/CJC%20Document%20Library/HB3194CostAvoidanceReportJan2021.pdf


2. Program Goals 
The Justice Reinvestment Grant Program is Oregon’s proactive approach to effectively spend resources in the 
state’s criminal justice system. Under the justice reinvestment model, prison growth is limited and a portion of the 
avoided operational prison costs are reinvested in the state’s local public safety systems. 

 
The purpose of the Justice Reinvestment Grant Program is to provide funding for counties to plan, 
implement, and/or expand initiatives that establish a process to assess offenders and provide a continuum of 
community-based sanctions, services and programs that are designed to: 
 
a. Reduce recidivism while protecting public safety and holding offenders accountable and 
b. Decrease the county’s utilization of imprisonment in a Department of Corrections institution while 

protecting public safety and holding offenders accountable.1 
 

The Justice Reinvestment Program supports two grants that are separate but applied for concurrently. The first grant 
is the formula grant, which is distributed to all qualifying counties that meet eligibility requirements and the goals of 
Justice Reinvestment using a formula, which determine award amounts. The second grant is the supplemental grant, 
which is a competitive grant designed to supplement formula grant programs. Supplemental grant funds are directed 
to programs that have dedicated downward departure prison diversion programs.  

 
3. Eligible Program Requirements 

In order to be considered for Justice Reinvestment funding, a program must: 
a. Establish a process to assess populations served by JRI funding; 
b. Serves offenders charged with or convicted of property, drug, or driving offenses; 
c. Consider and accept short-term transitional leave candidates as appropriate; 
d. Provide assistance to clients enrolling in the Oregon Health Plan; 

Utilize treatment providers that accept the Oregon Health Plan; and 
e. Work towards imbedding equity throughout the county’s criminal justice system. 

 
4. List of Evidence-based Curriculums 

Programs receiving Justice Reinvestment funding should be evidence-based. Counties are encouraged to consult 
the Adult Criminal Justice Section of the Benefit-Cost Results page by the Washington State Institute for Public 
Policy as a resource for evidence-based programs. While the list is not authoritative or comprehensive for each 
community, it does serve as a valuable resource. 

 
 
 
 

1 Oregon Legislature. 77th Assembly, HB 3194 (2013). 
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2013R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB3194/Enrolled. (Accessed March 2021). 

69

http://www.wsipp.wa.gov/BenefitCost?topicId=2
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2013R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB3194/Enrolled


5. Unallowable Uses for Award Funds 
Unallowable uses for award funds include, but are not limited to, the following activities: 

 
• Land acquisition, including renting, leasing, or construction of buildings or other physical facilities except 

with the prior written approval of the CJC;  
• Physical facility improvements, restoration, or remodeling except with the prior written approval of the CJC; 
• Compensation of federal employees including salary, consulting fees, travel, or other 

compensation; 
• Bonuses; 
• Firearms; 
• Tactical equipment; 
• Polygraphs; 
• Marketing or branding; 
• Lobbying; 
• Fundraising or donations; 
• Taxes; 
• Entertainment, including amusement, diversion, social activities, and any associated costs (i.e. 

tickets to shows or sports events, meals, lodging, rentals, transportation, and gratuities);† 
• Fines and penalties; 
• Home office workspace and related utilities; 
• Passport charges; 
• Food or drink, except as per diem in accordance with Oregon’s Statewide Travel Policy; † 
• Membership to lobbying organizations; 
• Pets and pet care; 
• Tip line and rewards; or 
• Survey rewards. 

 
† If approved in advance by the Criminal Justice Commission, Victim Service providers receiving Justice Reinvestment funds 
may spend a portion of their award on these items. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



6. How to Apply 
Applicants will complete and submit applications online through the CJC’s grant administration website at 
https://cjc- grants.smapply.io. Each county may submit a single two-stage application for a Justice Reinvestment 
Grant that should include the Formula Grant application and, optionally, the Supplemental Grant application. The 
application will be submitted in two stages: first, a preliminary application will be submitted to receive feedback 
from CJC staff and the Grant Review Committee, and second, a final application for the Grant Review Committee to 
evaluate. Late applications will not be accepted.  
 
Before completing an application on the grant administration website, the applicant will need to set up a user 
account and log in credentials. CJC staff screening of the application will determine whether any modifications are 
required before advancing the application to the Grant Review Committee. If modifications or additional 
information is necessary, the identified program contact will receive electronic notice asking for revisions to be 
made within a specified time frame. 

Applicants are encouraged to consult the Criminal Justice Commission Grant Management Handbook. 
 

Estimated Grant Application Timetable 
April 1, 2021 Request for Grant Proposals (RFGP) Released 

May 14, 2021 Preliminary Application Due at 1:00 PM 

May 28, 2021 Grant Review Committee Meets to Review 
Preliminary Application 

June 15, 2021 Preliminary Application Feedback Provided 

July 1, 2021 Final Application Released 
August 25, 2021 Final Application Due 
September 30, 2021  
October 1, 2021 

Grant Review Committee Meets to Review 
Final Application 

October 2021 Commission Award Decisions 
November 2021 Intent to Award Letters 
December 2021 Grant Award Letters/Agreements 

 
Upon final execution of contract, the payment for the first half of Year 1 (six months) will be released. 

71

https://cjc-grants.smapply.io/
https://cjc-grants.smapply.io/


7. Preliminary Application  
7.1. Preliminary Application Contents 
❑ Cover Sheet 
❑ Identification of Gaps in Local Criminal Justice System 
❑ Evaluation of Success and Challenges of Current Use of Grant Funds 
❑ Engagement of Historically Underserved Communities and Community Partners 
❑ Statements of Commitment 
❑ Description of How County will Select Victim Service Providers 
❑ Plan for Evaluation Funding 
❑ Plan for Supplemental Grant 

 
7.2. Cover Sheet 
❑ County 
❑ Primary Applicant Contact Information 
❑ LPSCC Chair Contact Information 

 
7.3. Identification of Gaps in Local Criminal Justice System 
❑ What gaps presently exist in your local criminal justice system? 
❑ What changes does the county need to make to be able to reduce prison usage of nonviolent offenders? 
❑ What changes does the county need to make to be able to reduce recidivism? 
❑ What gaps, if any, exist within your county’s population that result in inequitable access to established or 

developing programs or services offered?  
 

7.4. Evaluation of Successes and Challenges 
❑ Is the County experiencing a reduction in prison usage of nonviolent offenders? 
❑ Is the County experiencing a reduction in recidivism? 
❑ Is the County experiencing or anticipating additional impacts from COVID-19?  
 

7.5. Inclusion of Input of Historically Underserved Communities and Community Partners 
❑ How do you intend to include the input of historically underserved communities and community partners?  

 
7.6. Statement of Commitments 

Pursuant to OAR 213-060-0050, the district attorney, presiding judge, community corrections director, and relevant 
stakeholders of the service or program for which the county is requesting funding must include a statement of 
commitment to: 

1. Reduce recidivism while protecting public safety and holding offenders accountable 
2. Decrease the county’s utilization of imprisonment in a Department of Corrections institution while 

protecting public safety and holding offenders accountable.  
 

CJC has provided example statements of commitment that you may use as guides to help each of the relevant stakeholders 
develop their own statements of commitment.  

 
7.7. Victims Service Providers 

How does the County intend to select which victim service providers in the community to award funds? If the county 
will run a competitive process, please briefly describe it.  
 

72

http://www.oregon.gov/cjc/jri/Documents/JRI_Statements_of_Commitment.pdf


7.8. Evaluation 
Three percent of the total amount of Justice Reinvestment grant funds will be used to help fund randomized 
controlled trials (RCTs) or other evaluations. Applicants can choose to remit funding for research described in this 
section to the CJC or may retain these funds to conduct an approved evaluation overseen by the applicant. Applicants 
seeking to retain funds must submit a detailed plan for the use of research funds in the Final Application. 
 

7.9. Supplemental Grant 
In 2017, HB 3078 created a competitive grant to support downward departure prison diversion programs. If funds are 
appropriated to the Supplemental Grant, these funds are limited to positions and trainings that directly support 
downward departure prison diversion programs. 
 
❑ Does the County intend to apply for the Supplemental Grant in the Final Application?  

 

8. Final Application 
8.1. Final Application Contents 
❑ Cover Sheet 
❑ Description of Overall Justice Reinvestment Effort 
❑ Description of Proposed Programs  
❑ Goals of Justice Reinvestment 
❑ Cultural Responsiveness 
❑ Evidence of Collaboration in Planning and Implementation 
❑ LPSCC Membership 
❑ LPSCC Staff 
❑ Proposed Program Budget 
❑ Victim Services 10% Narrative(s) 
❑ Proposed Victim Services 10% Budget(s) 
❑ Evaluation Plan, if applicable 
❑ Racial and Ethnic Impact Statement 
❑ Letter of Support from County Commission 
❑ Letter of Support from LPSCC Chair 
❑ Letter of Support from Presiding Judge 
❑ Supplemental Grant Application (Optional) 
❑ Signature Page 

 
8.2. Cover Sheet 
• Primary Applicant Contact Information 
• Fiscal Contact Information 
• Contact Person to Answer Questions on Review Day 

 
8.3. Narrative 

Description of Justice Reinvestment Effort 
Provide a detailed description of the activities for which funding is requested, including activity goals and objectives. 
The description should be presented in a way that helps stakeholders, such as administrators, staff, evaluators, 
funding agencies, advocacy groups, citizens, and elected officials, understand and communicate about the program. 
 
Each County’s Justice Reinvestment effort may include multiple programs. Each program must be described in 

73



detail. The following information will be requested: 
• Overall goal of the program (500-word maximum). 
• Target population (500-word maximum). 
• Description of what evidence-based practices will be used (300-word maximum). 
• Metrics that will be used to measure success (250-word maximum). 
• How the program meets the goals of Justice Reinvestment (500-word maximum)? 
• Whether any of the programs included in the application received a Corrections Program Checklist review. If 

so, when was the review? Briefly describe the outcome and any steps to address the findings (500-word 
maximum). 
 

8.4. Goals of Justice Reinvestment 
Responses must include all proposed grant-funded activities, as well as local policy changes or collaborative efforts 
that support the county's progress toward meeting the goals of Justice Reinvestment. The application must 
address the goals of Justice Reinvestment. In this section, it is required that the LPSCC review the county-specific 
data found on the CJC dashboards. Applications must reference the dashboards and clearly articulate the county’s 
progress toward meeting the goals, as well as how the proposed program will assist in meeting those goals in the 
future. 

 
8.4.1. Reduce recidivism through evidence-based practices while increasing public safety and holding offenders 

accountable. 
 

Applicants are expected to use the CJC recidivism dashboards to contextualize the county’s current 
recidivism rates and explain how the proposed program will decrease these rates while increasing public 
safety and holding offenders accountable. Describe efforts to reduce recidivism during the past biennia and 
how the proposed program will change or continue those efforts. 

 
The statewide definition of recidivism includes new arrest, conviction, or incarceration within three years of 
a prior conviction or release from custody (ORS 423.557). CJC dashboards show statewide and county- 
specific recidivism data for both one and three years. Applicants are encouraged to address comparisons to 
the statewide rate. 

 
8.4.2. Reduce prison utilization for property, drug, and driving offenses while increasing public safety and 

holding offenders accountable. 
 

Applicants must identify how the proposed program will reduce county prison usage for property, drug, and 
driving offenses while increasing public safety and holding offenders accountable. Applicants are expected 
to use the CJC Justice Reinvestment Prison Usage dashboards to address data trends. Applicants are 
encouraged to incorporate data specific to the county’s prison intakes, revocations, length of stay, and 
relationship to the statewide rates when discussing past, present, and projected prison usage. 

 
In addition, applicants will be asked to respond to CJC dashboard data regarding county prison usage specific 
to female property, drug, and driving offenses, as well as describe local efforts to address this population. 

 
  OPTIONAL: If your county has prison-reduction efforts outside of property, drug, and driving offenses 

 please briefly describe them. 
 

74

https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/SAC/Pages/snapshot.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/SAC/Pages/snapshot.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/SAC/Pages/snapshot.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/cjc/SAC/Pages/snapshot.aspx


 
8.5. Cultural Responsiveness 

Culturally responsive services are comprehensive processes that have been adjusted to consider and support the 
principles, practices, culture and needs of underserved populations within a community. Underserved populations 
are comprised of individuals who identify with specific cultural connections based on their ethnic or racial origin, 
place of birth, familial structure, gender identity, and language spoken in the home. 

 
• What underserved populations does your program serve?  
• What culturally responsive practices does the county use with justice-involved individuals? 
• How did you include the input of historically underserved communities, including, but not limited to, racial 

and ethnic minorities, women, lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, queer, and other minority gender identity 
communities? Please describe all consultations or attempts at outreach.  

• How did you include the input of community partners in the implementation of the proposed services? 
Please identify community partners.  

• How do you intend to ensure that services funded by these grant dollars are used to promote social equity 
for historically underserved communities? Detail what controls you will put in place or metrics you will use 
to track success. 

8.6. Evidence of Collaboration in Planning and Implementation (300-word maximum) 
Effective collaboration within the LPSCC is expected in the development, submission, and monitoring of the 
county's Justice Reinvestment grant. Describe the collaborative partnerships in place that will support the county's 
performance and progress toward the goals of Justice Reinvestment. Counties will also be required to identify 
LPSCC members and staff that supports the LPSCC, if the county employs any. 

 
8.7. Proposed Program Budget 

Applicants must prepare a budget based on the full two-year, 24 month cycle. The budget should clearly show a 
breakdown of costs in the following categories: personnel, contractual/consultant services, supplies, travel/training, 
equipment, rent/utilities, evaluation, and administrative. Administrative costs must not exceed 10% of the overall 
award. If funds will be used to hire new personnel, the budget must reflect a realistic start date for each position, 
taking into account time to post jobs, recruit, and hire. Regular updates to CJC on hiring will be required. 

 
8.8. Victim Services Narrative 

8.8.1. Ten percent of Justice Reinvestment grant funds must be allocated to community-based nonprofit 
victim services providers. Each victim services provider must complete a separate Victim Services 
Narrative. 

 
8.8.2. Each narrative must include a description of the community-based nonprofit victim services providers that 

are identified to receive these funds (500-word maximum). Each community-based nonprofit victim services 
provider must have: 

• A documented history of effectively providing direct services to victims of crime; 
• A mission that is primarily focused on providing direct services to victims of crime; and 
• The capacity and specific training to effectively deliver direct services to victims of crime. 

 
8.8.3. Each narrative must also include a description of the proposed services (1,000-word maximum) and explain 

how the proposed services will address the following criteria: 
• Need for the proposed services in the community targeting marginalized and underserved 

populations in the community; 

75



• Access barriers, such as, but not limited to: language, literacy, disability, transportation, and cultural 
practices; 

• Capacity increases for areas where services are difficult to access, limited, or nonexistent; and 
• Trauma-informed interventions and services. 

 
8.9. Victim Services Budget 

CJC requires applicants prepare a budget based on the 24 month budget cycle. The proposed budget should be 
completed individually for each community-based nonprofit victim services providers requesting funding. The 
budget should clearly show a breakdown of costs in the following categories: personnel, contractual/consultant 
services, supplies, travel/training, equipment, rent/utilities, evaluation, and administrative. 
 
 Administrative costs may include activities such as purchasing, budgeting, payroll, accounting, and staff 
services. 

 
8.10. Evaluation Plan 

8.10.1. Three percent of the total amount of Justice Reinvestment grant funds will be used to help fund 
randomized controlled trials (RCTs) or other evaluations. Applicants can choose to remit funding for 
research described in this section to the CJC or may retain these funds to conduct an approved evaluation 
overseen by the applicant. Applicants seeking to retain funds must submit a detailed plan for the use of 
research funds as described below. If a county selects to retain the 3% funds and conduct evaluations in-
house, funding will be released on a reimbursement basis. In choosing programs for RCTs or other rigorous 
evaluations, CJC will consider the following factors: 
• The proposed program is promising and has the capability of being reproduced in other counties. 
• The proposed program is capable of being evaluated through RCTs when taking into account sample size 

and other practical requirements. 
• The proposed RCT will meet the requirements of the institutional review board process. 
• Studying the program will benefit the state and more broadly the field of criminal justice by adding to 

the body of knowledge available. 
 

8.10.2. Applicants will select, in the application template, one of two options to meet the evaluation portion of 
a proposal. 

• County remits 3% of awarded funds to the CJC’s statewide evaluation budget. 
• County retains 3% of awarded funds for a locally administered RCT when possible and appropriate. 

 
8.10.3. Questions if applicants choose to retain 3% of awarded funds for a locally administered RCT 

• What is the primary research question that the proposed project will seek to answer? 
• What, if any, are the secondary research questions that the proposed project will seek to answer? 
• Please provide a brief review of the existing social scientific research related to the proposed 

project. 
• Please describe how this project will benefit the State of Oregon as well as the field of criminal 

justice more broadly. 
• Please describe your dissemination plan for the results of this project. Also, how will other Oregon 

criminal justice stakeholders be able to replicate your program in their jurisdictions? 
• Please describe the research design/methodology for this project. 
• Describe the study population and expected sample size. Please describe the method used to arrive at 

sample size estimates. 

76



• Please describe the control group; if a random control trial is not possible, please explain how the 
proposed research will employ a quasi-experimental design. 

• What statistical method(s) will be used to analyze your data? 
• If the project involves the collection of primary data, please describe the IRB process you will use and 

the expected IRB timeline for this project. 
• List project deliverables and expected completion dates, including the following: 

o IRB approval letter; 
o Quarterly updates on research progress and recruitment; 
o A written report of study results; and 
o If using a subcontracted researcher, applicants must provide a plan for the overall management 

of the project. 
8.10.4. If cooperating with another county (or counties) to increase your sample size, specify how 

fidelity to the program between (or among) counties will be monitored and maintained. 
 

8.11. Racial and Ethnic Impact Statement 
Pursuant to Section 4, Chapter 600, Oregon Laws 2013, grant applicants are required to complete a Racial and      
Ethnic Impact Statement. One Racial and Ethnic Impact Statement must be completed per application. This 
statement should reflect the impacts of ALL activities, victim services, and evaluations proposed in the application. 

 
9. Supplemental Grant Funds (Optional) 

9.1. Overview of Justice Reinvestment Supplementary Grant Program 
In 2017, HB 3078 created a competitive grant to support downward departure prison diversion programs. If funds 
are appropriated to the Supplemental Grant, these funds are limited to positions and trainings that directly support 
downward departure prison diversion programs. 

 
9.2. Supplemental Victim Services  

Ten percent of supplemental funding requested must be dedicated to nonprofit community-based victim 
services providers approved in the county’s formula-based Justice Reinvestment grant application. 

 
9.3. Program Performance Objectives 

Qualifying programs must: 
• Identify a specific eligible population agreed upon by all key stakeholders, including the district attorney’s office, 

the judiciary, and community corrections. 
• Use presentencing assessments to inform downward departure sentencing. Assessments used may include, but 

are not limited to, the PSC, LS/CMI, URICA, TCUDS, ASUS, and WRNA. 
• Establish regular communication regarding program participants’ progress, including collaboration on revocation 

decisions. 
• Use structured sanctions for all program participants. 
• Provide supervision, sanctions, and services appropriate to participants’ criminogenic risks and needs. 
• Aim to decrease county prison intakes—including revocations—for the target population. 
• Use data to monitor and evaluate program in order to improve program operations. 

 
9.4. How to Apply 

Applications must be submitted online through the CJC’s grant administration website at https://cjc-
grants.smapply.io. Simply indicate your interest in applying for the supplemental grant funds when filling out the 

77

https://cjc-grants.smapply.io./
https://cjc-grants.smapply.io./


main Justice Reinvestment grant. Late applications and applications without letters of support will not be 
accepted. 
 

9.5. Allowable Uses 
Supplemental grant funds are restricted to supporting key personnel positions that increase local capacity to engage 
in a collaborative, effective downward departure prison diversion program. Funding is available to support critical 
personnel in participating agencies including, but not limited to, the following: 
 
• Public Defense Services 
• District Attorney’s Office 
• Judiciary 
• Community Corrections 
 
Funding may also be used for training directly related to the development or operation of the downward 
departure prison diversion program. 

 
Funding may not be used to support wraparound services or sanctions for program participants, such as 
treatment, housing, skills training, jail beds, or community service programming. Applicants are strongly 
encouraged to use their formula-based Justice Reinvestment grant funding to build appropriate local service and 
sanction capacity. 
 
 

9.6. Application Contents 
9.6.1. Application must include a program narrative that: 
• Describes the target population eligible for the county’s downward departure prison diversion program, 

including, but not limited to, crime types, criminal history factors, risk scores, and residency. Include specific 
assessments to be used, as well as factors that would result in automatic exclusion from the program (200- 
word maximum). 

• Describes the referral process by which participants are identified, assessed, and departed into the program. 
How will victim input be considered in the decision to depart an individual to this program? (200-word 
maximum) 

• Explains the elements of supervision for this program and highlight differences from standard supervision in 
your county including, but not limited to, caseload ratios, contact standards, drug testing schedules, 
response to violations, and use of incentives (500-word maximum). 

• Describes your county’s capacity to provide the necessary level of services appropriate to the target 
population. Examples include, but are not limited to, substance use treatment, housing, mentors, mental 
health, and cognitive treatment (1,000-word maximum). 

• Describes your county’s capacity to provide the appropriate level of local sanctions necessary to manage the 
target population. Examples include, but are not limited to, jail-bed availability and community service (200- 
word maximum). 

• Explains whether structured sanctions be used for every downward departure participant. 
• Describes the process for determining revocation of program participants (200-word maximum). 
• Explains how the program will be monitored, evaluated, and adapted. Describes what body will oversee 

implementation and track program outcomes. (400-word maximum) 
• Describes the county’s total prison intakes for the program’s target population during the 2019–21 

biennium. 

78



• Explains how many fewer intakes are anticipated for the target population during the 2021–23 
biennium given full program implementation and describes how the estimate was calculated through 
anticipated decreases in first sentences, revocations, or both. 

• Explains whether funding is being requested to support a new or existing (prior to August 25, 2021) program 
and if new, describes when the program is expected to be operational 
 

9.6.2. Letters of Support for Application 
Each Supplemental Grant application must contain a signed letter of support for the proposed Supplemental Grant 
program from the following: 
• County board of commissioners; 
• The director of community corrections; 
• The district attorney; 
• The defense attorney serving on the LPSCC; 
• The presiding judge of the local circuit court; and 
• The LPSCC chair. 

 

10.  Application Review and Award Decisions 
10.1. Formula Grant Review Process 

CJC staff will conduct the initial review of all Preliminary Applications received by 1:00 p.m. on May 14, 2021. Each     
application will be examined for responsiveness to the guidelines provided in this RFGP related to timeliness and 
contents. The Grant Review Committee will meet to review all counties. 

 
The Grant Review Committee will meet on May 28, 2021 to review Preliminary Applications. The Grant Review 
Committee will return feedback to counties on the Preliminary Application by June 15, 2021.  

 
CJC staff will conduct the initial review of all Final Applications received by 1:00 p.m. on August 25, 2021. Each 
application will be examined for responsiveness to the guidelines provided in this RFGP related to timeliness and 
contents. If CJC staff determines that modifications are required before advancing the application to the Grant 
Review Committee, the identified program contact will receive electronic notice asking for revisions to be made 
within a specified time frame. 

 
CJC may negotiate the components of the application. An application will be deemed nonresponsive if it does not 
conform to the application requirements. LPSCCs submitting applications deemed nonresponsive will be 
contacted in order to address deficiencies in the application. 

 
See “Unallowable Uses for Award Funds” in Section 5 to determine whether budget items requested are allowable 
prior to submitting your budget. 

 
All applications that are responsive to the guidelines will be provided to the Grant Review Committee for review 
and evaluation based on the following criteria as found in OAR 213-060-0060: 
• Whether the applicant’s program is designed to reduce recidivism of offenders; 
• The extent to which the applicant’s county has historically reduced the utilization of imprisonment in Department 

of Correction facilities by offenders convicted of felonies described in ORS 137.717, 475.752 to 475.935, 
811.182, 813.010, or 813.011. 

• Whether the applicant’s program is designed to reduce prison use by offenders convicted of felonies described 
in ORS 137.717, 475.752 to 475.935, 811.182, 813.010, or 813.011; 

79



• Whether the applicant’s program would increase public safety; and 
• Whether the applicant’s program would hold offenders accountable. 

 
The Grant Review Committee will meet on September 30, 2021 and October 1, 2021 to review applications. Each 
county must identify someone that will be available to answer questions about this application if the Grant 
Review Committee has any. The Grant Review Committee will recommend approved applications to the Criminal 
Justice Commissioners for final award decisions. If an application needs rehabilitation, the Grant Review Committee 
will notify CJC staff, who will work with the county to address deficiencies. 

 
10.2. Supplemental Grant Review Process 

All applications responsive to the guidelines will be provided to the Grant Review Committee for review and 
evaluation based on the following criteria: 

• Start date of program, with preference given to programs established on or after August 25, 2021; 
• Applicant estimation of total decrease in prison intakes for program’s target population from the 

2019–21 biennium to the 2021–23 biennium; 
• County capacity to provide appropriate level of services, sanctions, and supervision for program participants; 
• Level of demonstrated commitment to reducing county prison intakes by critical stakeholders including, 

but not limited to, the district attorney’s office, the judiciary, and community corrections; and 
• Total amount of funding requested compared to expected program capacity and applicant 

estimation of decrease in prison intakes. 
 

10.3. Award Decisions and Protests 
10.3.1. Awards. The Grant Review Committee will recommend approved applications to the Criminal Justice 

Commissioners for final award decisions. CJC may approve an application in whole or in part, as well as 
issue a provisional one-year award with continued funding contingent upon program performance and 
progress. CJC will issue Award Notification Letters and Grant Award Agreements. 

10.3.2. Protests. The affected applicant shall have seven (7) calendar days from the date of the Intent to Award 
Notice to file a written protest. An applicant is considered affected only if the applicant would be eligible 
for the award in the event that the protest is successful. 

 Protests must: 
• Be delivered to the CJC via email to CJC.grants@oregon.gov or hard copy 
• Reference the RFGP name 
• Identify applicant’s name and contact information 
• Be signed by an authorized representative 
• Specify the grounds for the protest 
• Be received within seven (7) calendar days of the Intent to Award Notice 

CJC will address all timely submitted protests within 30 days and will issue a written decision to any respective 
applicants. The agency will not consider protests that do not include the required information. 

 
10.4. Award Conditions 

Counties receiving awards must agree to the grant award terms and conditions. CJC may negotiate the terms of the 
Grant Award Agreement. In the event that mutually agreeable terms cannot be reached within a reasonable time 
period, as judged by CJC, the Commission reserves the right to cancel the award to the applicant. 

 
11. Monitoring and Reporting 

80

mailto:CJC.grants@oregon.gov


11.1. Award Conditions 
Once awarded, CJC will monitor whether grantees are operating their programs as described in their approved 
applications, as well as county performance and progress toward the goals of the Justice Reinvestment Grant 
Program. To assist CJC in the monitoring process, quarterly financial reporting, semi-annual progress reporting, 
periodic communications, and occasional site visits by CJC. 

 
11.2. Reporting 

11.2.1. Financial: Grantees will be required to report program expenditures quarterly through the CJC’s grant 
administration website at https://cjc-grants.smapply.io. All documented expenses (time sheets, invoices, 
travel charges, etc.) must be documented and retained for six years following the close of the grant. 

11.2.2. Program Progress Report: Grantees will be required to submit semi-annual progress reports through the 
CJC’s grant administration website. Progress Reports will be narrative and require the grantee to evaluate to 
program performance and progress toward the goals of Justice Reinvestment with reference to the most 
recent data available on the CJC Justice Reinvestment dashboards. 

11.2.3. Victim Services Progress Report: A brief report is to be provided annually regarding services to victims 
with the Victim Services funding. 

 
12.  Distribution of Funding 
CJC will provide grant funds in four installments during the biennium to the designated county applying for Justice 
Reinvestment grant program funding. Initial funding will be provided following the execution of the CJC Grant Award 
Agreement. Subsequent funding disbursements will be made contingent upon spend down and performance and 
progress towards the goals of Justice Reinvestment on a regular basis. 
 

 
13.  Grant Suspension or Termination 
Following reasonable notice to grantees and attempts to resolve problems informally, CJC may suspend funding in whole 
or in part, terminate funding, or impose another sanction for any of the following reasons: 

 
• Failure of the program to comply substantially with the requirements or statutory objectives of 

Justice Reinvestment Grant Program guidelines issued hereunder, or with other provisions of 
state law; 

• Failure of the program to make satisfactory progress toward the approved goals and objectives; 
• Failure of the program to adhere to the requirements of the grant award and standard or special conditions; 
• Proposing or implementing substantial changes that result in a program that would not have been 

selected if it had been subjected to the original review of applications; or 
• Failure of the program to comply substantially with any other applicable state statute, regulation, or 

guideline. 
 
It is the role of CJC to ensure that the funds, as awarded, comply with state and local statutes and rules. CJC reserves all 
rights regarding this opportunity, including, but not limited to, the right to: 

CJC may issue partial awards or a provisional one-year award with continued 
funding contingent upon improved performance and progress toward the 
goals of the Justice Reinvestment Grant Program. 

81

https://cjc-grants.smapply.io/


 
• Amend or cancel this opportunity without liability if it is in the best interest of the public to do so; 
• Reject any and all applications upon finding that it is in the best interest of the public to do so; 
• Waive any minor irregularity, informality, or nonconformance with the provisions or procedures of this 

opportunity; 
• Reject any applications that fail to substantially comply with all prescribed solicitation procedures and 

requirements; 
• Amend, at CJC’s sole discretion, any agreements that are a result of this opportunity; 
• Engage other grantees or contractors by selection or procurement independent of this opportunity process 

and/or any contracts/agreements under it; 
• Accept applications in whole or in part. CJC is under no obligation to do so, but at its discretion may request 

additional information or clarification from applicants for the purposes of assuring a complete understanding 
of their applications and supporting an accurate review, evaluation, and comparison; 

• Require applications to be modified if it is found to be in the best interest of the public; 
• Extend any agreement resulting from this opportunity without an additional solicitation process; and 
• Modify the type of agreement vehicle employed, based on what CJC deems appropriate to the type of work 

for which funds may be awarded, if it is in the best interest of the public to do so. 

82



Section 10 

CITY OF SALEM POLICE DEPARTMENT-  

INDEPENDENT ASSESSMENT 

APRIL 22, 2021 

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



 

 

Section 11 

 

 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE ITEMS - 2021 LEGISLATIVE SESSION 

  

 

 

 

  

   

 

204



DATE: June 28, 2020  

TO: AOC Public Safety Steering Committee 

FROM: Rob Bovett, AOC Legal Counsel and Legislative Director 

SUBJECT: Staff Memo at the close of the 2021 Regular Oregon Legislative Session 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The 2021 Regular Legislative Session came to a close on Saturday, June 26, 2021, at around 5:30 PM.  It was, 
by all measures, an unusual session conducted during an unusual time – worldwide pandemic, hyper-partisan 
politics, etc.  Here is a brief run-down with regard to AOC top priorities in the public safety policy portfolio, 
followed by special notes with regard to 9 bills: 

A. AOC Top 2021 Legislative Priorities in Public Safety

• 1. Police Reform: “Identify and facilitate appropriate legislative responses to the causes of racial
and ethnic disparities in the justice system to reduce and ultimately eradicate them, fostering
public trust and promoting public safety.”

Oregon law enforcement has a proven track record of working closely with the Oregon State Legislature 
on public safety legislation that is responsive to community needs and improves public safety outcomes for all 
Oregonians. With this as a goal, AOC and Oregon law enforcement were pleased to play a role in the 
collaborative and bi-partisan process that resulted in the series of 7 police reform bills that were passed in the 
first and second 2020 special sessions and the 16 police reform bills that were passed in the 2021 regular 
session - for a total of 23 bills.  That legislation represents meaningful and comprehensive change to police 
practices that will translate into increased equity, transparency and enhanced community trust in Oregon 
policing.  All 23 of these bills were also supported by the Oregon State Sheriffs Association (OSSA), the League 
of Oregon Cities (LOC), and the Oregon Association Chiefs of Police (OACP).   

AOC wishes to express special thanks to the members of the House Judiciary Committee, Chaired by 
Representative Bynum and Vice-Chaired by Representatives Noble and Power, the members of the House 
Subcommittee on Equitable Policing, Chaired by Representative Bynum and Vice-Chaired by Representative 
Noble, the members of the Joint Committee on Transparent Policing and Use of Force Reform, Co-Chaired by 
Senator Manning and Representative Bynum, and the members of the Joint Committees of the First and Second 
Special Session.  For convenience, here is a list of all 23: 

2020 First Special Session 
• SB 1604  Police discipline matrix and arbitrator decisions 
• HB 4201  Transparent Policing and Use of Force Reform Committee 
• HB 4203  Use of force reform – chokeholds 
• HB 4205  Duty to intervene with regard to misconduct 
• HB 4207  DPSST database of suspensions and revocations 

205

https://oregonsheriffs.org/
https://www.orcities.org/
https://www.orcities.org/
https://www.policechief.org/
https://apps.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Committees/HJUD/Overview
https://apps.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Committees/HJUDEP/Overview
https://apps.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Committees/HJUDEP/Overview
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2019I1/Committees/JTPUFR/Overview
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S1/Committees/J1SS/Overview
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S2/Committees/JP2SS/Overview
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S1/Measures/Overview/SB1604
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S1/Measures/Overview/HB4201
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S1/Measures/Overview/HB4203
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S1/Measures/Overview/HB4205
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S1/Measures/Overview/HB4207


• HB 4208 Use of force reform - tear gas 
2020 Second Special Session 
• HB 4301 Use of force reform – generally 
2021 Regular Session 
• HB 2162 Police training and certification  
• HB 2481 Limits on use of military surplus equipment 
• HB 2513 CPR training and EMS referrals 
• HB 2575 Interactions with persons who experienced trauma 
• HB 2928 Limits on use of teargas and riot munitions 
• HB 2929 Duty to report misconduct 
• HB 2930 Police discipline arbitration reform 
• HB 2932 Reporting to FBI use of force database 
• HB 2936 Background checks and social media policies 
• HB 2986 Gender crime training 
• HB 3047 Civil cause of action for doxing 
• HB 3059 Unlawful assembly response 
• HB 3145 Police discipline database 
• HB 3164 Revisions to interfering with a police officer 
• HB 3273 Regulating release of booking photos 
• HB 3355 Crowd management uniforms in larger cities 

• 2. Probation Fees: “Make it optional for counties to collect parole and probation fees (changing
“shall” to “may” in ORS 423.570).”

AOC and the Oregon Association of Community Correction Directors (OACCD) supported Senate Bill 620 
to allow counties the discretion to not charge and collect probation fees.  That bill passed the Senate without any 
opposition.  However, the incredibly positive May revenue forecast, combined with the infusion of federal COVID 
relief funds, meant the legislature could entirely eliminate probation fees statewide with a $10 million backfill to 
prevent service reduction.  As a result, Senate Bill 620 was amended to remove the fees and Section 165 of 
House Bill 5006 provided the backfill. 

• 3. Community Corrections Funding: “Secure full funding of baseline community corrections
essential to the efficacy of supervised probation and ensuring public safety.”

AOC supported full baseline funding for community corrections, taking into account cuts resulting from 
the failure of the 2019 and 2020 legislative sessions to fully fund community corrections during the 2019-2021 
biennium, as well as the passage of Ballot Measure 110 that further reduced funding for community 
corrections.  Further, AOC supported additional funding for community corrections by way of special programs 
under the auspices of the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission, such as the Justice Reinvestment Initiative 
(JRI).  Further, AOC supported expanding community correction services to include certain misdemeanor 
domestic violence and sex crime cases.  Here are the highlights: 

o $32 million added to baseline budget.
o Full funding for JRI and other specialty court programs.
o Elimination of probation fees with a $10 million backfill to maintain services.
o Expansion of community corrections to include certain misdemeanor domestic violence cases.

Baseline funding was expanded though the Department of Corrections (DOC) budget bill, HB 5004.  Full 
funding for JRI and other specialty programs occurred through the Criminal Justice Commission (CJC) budget 
bill,  HB 5005, and expansion to include certain domestic violence misdemeanors was accomplished by way of 
SB 497.  Further, SB 620 eliminated probation fees, but HB 5006 provided the backfill for that revenue loss.  

206

https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S1/Measures/Overview/HB4208
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2020S2/Measures/Overview/HB4301
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2162
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2481
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2513
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2575
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2928
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2929
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2930
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2932
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2936
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/ProposedAmendments/HB2986
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB3047
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB3059
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB3145
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB3164
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB3273
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB3355
https://oaccd.net/
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB620
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB5006
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB5004
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB5005
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB497
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB620
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB5006


• 4. Emergency Management: “Enhanced Emergency Notification and Preparedness:  The ongoing 
COVID-19 pandemic and wildfire disasters have called attention to the need for enhanced attention 
and funding for emergency management services.” 

 
AOC and the Oregon Emergency Management Association (OEMA) have supported the major 

restructuring of emergency management services for a number of years and legislative sessions.  These 
efforts have been spearheaded by Representative Paul Evans (Polk County), who chairs the House 
Committee on Veterans and Emergency Management.  The COVID pandemic and wildfire disasters further 
highlighted the need to move forward with this major restructuring and modernization of the way emergency 
services are delivered in Oregon.  It should be noted that, while emergency management currently resides in 
the public safety policy portfolio, it touches nearly every other portfolio, as we were all reminded by the COVID 
pandemic (Health & Human Services) and wildfires (Natural Resources).  Cross-portfolio work in this arena 
will certainly continue, as previously discussed by the AOC Legislative Committee.  Here are the highlights of 
this major restructuring and modernization of emergency management services in Oregon: 
• HB 2927 renames the Office of Emergency Management (OEM) as the Oregon Department of Emergency 

Management (ODEM) and establishes ODEM as an independent state agency, directing it to carry out 
various functions related to emergency response and preparedness. 

• The bill also transfers the Oregon Emergency Response System (OERS) from the Oregon State Police 
(OSP) to ODEM, and makes the State Fire Marshal an independent state agency.   

• The bill also establishes the Emergency Preparedness Advisory Council (EPAC) to make recommendations 
related to catastrophic disaster, establishes the Local Government Emergency Management Advisory 
Council (LGEMAC) to make recommendations to ODEM regarding emergency preparedness and response 
functions. 

 
It should also be noted that In January of 2021, AOC added the following principle to the AOC Public 

Safety Steering Committee list of principles: “Government at all levels should fully support the fundamental 
principles of emergency management, including preparedness, response, mitigation and recovery.” 
 

B. Notes on Specific Bills 
 

1. SB 218 - Expansion of conditional discharge  
This bill expands the types of charges eligible for conditional discharge to include any misdemeanor or 

Class C felony, other than driving while under the influence of intoxicants, if the defendant has been formally 
accepted into a specialty court program.  NOTE: AOC Legal Counsel has spent many years and legislative 
sessions expanding the reach of conditional discharge.  This bill may eliminate the need to continue to do so, 
but should be watched closely to ensure the bill encompasses all it intends. 
 

2. SB 295 - State hospital diversions to community care  
AOC and many of its partners engaged in the lead up to this major reform bill as part of the SB 24 work 

group.  The COVID pandemic exacerbated the pressures on the Oregon State Hospital which gave further 
impetus to the legislation.  NOTE: The net effect of diverting criminal defendants from the state hospital to 
community care also transfers significant liability from the state to counties and CMHP’s.  In an effort to 
address that, AOC and its partners urged the passage of legislation in the form of SB 198 to have the state 
retain that liability through indemnification.  The state was unwilling to accept that result, but the Oregon 
Health Authority has committed $5 million to purchase excess insurance for counties and CMHP’s.  That is 
only a temporary fix to this issue, which needs to be watched closely and brought to the 2023 legislative 
session. 

 

207

https://oregonemergency.com/
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Committees/HVEM/Overview
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Committees/HVEM/Overview
https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/housedemocrats/Documents/PRESS%20RELEASE%20Oregon%20House%20Passes%20Legislation%20to%20Modernize%20Emergency%20Management%20Systems.pdf
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2927
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB218
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2015R1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument/69276
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB295
https://www.opb.org/article/2021/06/03/oregon-national-guard-to-deploy-30-volunteers-to-state-hospita/
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB198


3. SB 620 - Elimination of probation fees  
AOC supported the original version of this bill that provided counties with discretion whether to charge 
supervision fees. The bill was amended late in the session to eliminate supervision fees, but with a backfill of 
$10 million to ensure community correction services are not impaired.  NOTE: SB 817 made similar changes 
in the juvenile delinquency system. 

4. SB 755 - Implementation of Ballot Measure 110 
AOC Legal Counsel participated on the main implementation work group and all three subgroups - treatment, 
enforcement, and youth.  NOTE: Ballot Measure 110: (a) Decriminalized most illicit drug possession and 
replaced that with a Class E violation as described above; and (b) diverted the majority of marijuana tax 
revenues to a new system of services as described above and primarily focused on harm reduction.  Oregon 
is the first state in our nation to take this type of action.  The nation of Portugal was cited as the model - 
however, Oregon is not a small conservative nation that still morally frowns on illicit drug use and took two 
years to implement decriminalization.  As a result, Oregon is now a test case - this should be monitored 
closely as things progress. 

5. HB 2930 - Police discipline arbitration reform  
This is one of the 16 police reform bills referred to above.  NOTE: AOC Legal Counsel believes this bill is an 
improvement to the current police discipline arbitration system, but not a fix to the underlying problem of 
using a police discipline arbitration system in the first place.  See here for a more complete explanation.  The 
impact of this bill should be closely monitored for both effectiveness and consequences.  AOC Legal Counsel 
has concerns about both. 

6. HB 2204 - Restorative justice pilot projects 
HB 2204 was completely replaced (“gut-and-stuffed”) late in the session with this proposal, originally made as 
part of HB 2002.  The bill directs the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission (CJC) to establish a program to 
award grants for restorative justice programs.  NOTE: Although this particular gut-and-stuff occurred too late 
in the session for AOC to directly engage, AOC Legal Counsel, who also serves as Vice-Chair and Acting 
Chair of the CJC, is excited about the possibilities of this new program.  

7. HB 3000 - Regulation of new impairing cannabis products 
Along with key state agency partners, AOC was heavily engaged in the development of this legislation to 
address growing public health and safety issues surrounding the production, processing, and sale of new 
impairing cannabinoids on the open market.  Those challenges have been most profoundly felt in Southwest 
Oregon, but this is a growing national issue.  NOTE:  With leadership from Representative Lily Morgan 
(Josephine County), legislators recognized the significant and growing public health and safety issues 
surrounding the hemp industry and the impacts of the unregulated artificial conversion of non-impairing 
cannabinoids to impairing cannabinoids and the sale of those new impairing products on the unregulated 
open market.  One of the consequences of those developments has been an explosion of cannabis 
production in Southwest Oregon to feed that unregulated market for new impairing cannabinoids, as well as 
law enforcement raids on some very large illegal grows.  Since HB 3000 is a rather large omnibus cannabis 
bill, here is a summary of it’s contents: 

Regulating the new impairing cannabinoids 
• Prohibits sale of adult use cannabis items to minors. 
• Permits the Oregon Department of Agriculture (ODA) to consider artificially-derived cannabinoids to be an 

adulterant. 
• Permits the Oregon Liquor and Cannabis Commission (OLCC) to regulate artificially-derived cannabinoids. 

208

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB620
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB817
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB755
https://www.npr.org/2021/06/18/1007022652/oregons-pioneering-drug-decriminalization-experiment-is-now-facing-the-hard-test
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2930
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1kfeQ7EEHNJzAbWn5EYqvGMvG3h42k7ei
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2204
https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/HB2204
https://ktvl.com/news/local/residents-take-concerns-over-illegal-marijuana-grows-in-josephine-to-state-officials
https://ktvl.com/news/local/residents-take-concerns-over-illegal-marijuana-grows-in-josephine-to-state-officials
https://www.kdrv.com/content/news/Law-enforcement-raids-large-illegal-marijuana-grow-in-Josephine-County-574510381.html


• Permits OLCC to set potency and concentration limits for tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) and other adult use 
cannabinoids for marijuana items and hemp items, in consultation with ODA and the Oregon Health 
Authority (OHA). 

• Includes artificially-derived cannabinoids in OLCC’s labeling rules. 
• Allows OHA to require testing for other adult use cannabinoids. 
• Directs ODA to establish tracking requirements for hemp commodities and products intended for human 

consumption, which may include associating test results to the batch that was tested. 
• Allows ODA to expand the scope of hemp handler activities and establish other license types. 

Addressing illicit cannabis production 
• Doubles funding for the Illegal Marijuana Market Enforcement Grant Program Fund. 
• Creates a Class A misdemeanor for unlawful production of marijuana and allows for destruction of  

unlawfully produced cannabis as contraband. 
• Directs OLCC to establish a method for presumptively distinguishing between hemp and marijuana -  

if ODA finds a hemp licensee is producing marijuana, ODA may order it be destroyed. 
• Allows ODA to enter into agreement with OLCC for OLCC staff to inspect hemp crops. 
• Allows law enforcement to accompany ODA to licensed hemp operations for the purpose of providing 

protection to agency staff. 
• Allows the Governor to order the Oregon National Guard to assist ODA enforcing hemp laws. 
• Requires hemp growers to report when they do not plant a crop or when they lose a crop. 
• When a crop exceeds 0.3% THC and must be destroyed, requires hemp growers to provide ODA with 

documentation of the destruction. 
• Requires that ODA refuse to register a hemp grower that planted prior to applying for registration unless 

all plants are removed – and places limitations around registering a hemp grower that planted after  
applying for registration but before receiving the registration. 

• Allows ODA to impose a civil penalty of up to $10,000 for a crop that exceeds 10% THC. 
Implementing the 2018 Farm Bill for hemp production 

• HB 3000 contains the authority necessary to have a state hemp plan approved by USDA under the  
2018 Agricultural Improvement Act (the “2018 Farm Bill”) - this includes authority for criminal records  
checks and allowing license denials based on an applicant’s criminal record. 

Establishing a Task Force 
• Establishes a bipartisan and bicameral task force - including representation from cities, counties, law 

enforcement, hemp growers, hemp handlers, marijuana licensees, OSU’s Global Hemp Innovation  
Center, ODA, OHA, and OLCC – to consider and make recommendations on long-term and structural 
concerns around cannabis regulation in Oregon. 

 
8. SB 5505 - County courthouse project bonds 
Among many other things, SB 5505 provides state general obligation bonds for a number of county 

courthouse projects: 
a. Benton County Courthouse:   $20,730,000 
b. Clackamas County Courthouse:   $95,400,000 
c. Crook County Courthouse:  $11,885,000 
d. Linn County Courthouse:   $16,110,000 

AOC works in partnership with the Oregon Judicial Department (OJD) to prioritize courthouse 
improvement and replacement projects for funding by the legislature.  The AOC-OJD Court Facilities Task 
Force is currently Chaired by Umatilla County Commissioner George Murdock.  NOTE 1: The Task Force will 
need to start meting again this Fall to work on updating the priority and project lists in preparation for the 
2023 legislative session.  NOTE 2: The budget note from the Capital Construction Subcommittee of the Joint 
Ways and Means Committee attached to this bill provides as follows: 

209

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB5505


     “The Subcommittee approved the following Other Funds expenditure limitations for the Oregon 
Courthouse Capital Construction and Improvement Fund and both state and local matching funds, 
with the difference between the state and local match related to the cost of bond issuance that is paid 
as part of the state match: 

     Courthouse Project     State Match  Local Match Total 
Benton County $20,730,000 $20,383,129 $41,113,129 
Linn County $16,110,000 $15,900,000 $32,010,000 
Crook County $11,885,000 $11,700,000 $23,585,000 
Clackamas $1 $1 $2 

     The revenue to support state matching funds is General Obligation bonds (Article XI-G) 
authorized in SB 5505 (2021). The timing of the issuance of the bonds will occur late in the 2021-23 
biennium and therefore there is no associated General Fund debt service related to the issuance for 
the 2021-23 biennium. 
     The Subcommittee provided the following instruction to the Judicial Department about the 
Clackamas County Courthouse project. 
     BUDGET NOTE 
     The Oregon Judicial Department (OJD), in coordination with Clackamas County, is requested to 
submit a report to the Joint Committee on Ways and Means, prior to the legislative session in 2022, 
on the design, build, finance, operation, and maintenance public-private partnership (P3) 
agreement(s) for the Clackamas County Courthouse, as well as the funding agreement between 
OJD and Clackamas County, related to constitutional and statutory requirements for state support 
and local matching funds for the Oregon Courthouse Capital Construction and Improvement Fund 
(OCCCIF). The report is to include, but not limited to: 

• the legal sufficiency of the Clackamas County public-private partnership agreement(s), from 
the state’s perspective, pertaining to funding agreement requirements; 

• estimated total cost of ownership to construct, occupy, and maintain the Clackamas County 
Courthouse; 

• affirmation of county ownership of the Clackamas County Courthouse building and property; 
• a final master funding agreement; and 
• a long-term flow-of-funds for state and local matching deposits into, and withdrawals from, 

the OCCCIF. 
     The report may also include recommendations for statutory changes related to public-private 
partnership agreement(s) and the OCCCIF. The submission of this report is a prerequisite for the 
consideration of supplemental Other Funds expenditure limitation for the Clackamas County 
Courthouse project.” 

 
9. SB 5512 - District Attorney budget 
AOC testified in favor of the District Attorney budget, and again implored the state to reverse course 

and restore some of the recent cuts to the DA budget for political and other unacceptable reasons.  NOTE: In 
addition to supporting this budget request, AOC again provided information to Ways & Means - this time in a 
one-pager and by way of oral testimony - regarding the State walking away from its financial obligations to 
help support the longstanding DA services partnership with Counties.  A set of talking points has started to 
develop among certain State folks as a counter argument - namely that counties agreed to keep funding DA 
services as part of the grand bargain struck in the early 1980’s regarding the court system and defense 
attorney services.  However, even if those talking points were accurate and not misleading, they fail to 
explain the subsequent recommendations from State executive and legislative officials to restore subsequent 
legislative cuts to the DA budget in the late 1990’s and early 2000’s, the cuts to the DA budget throughout the 

210

https://olis.leg.state.or.us/liz/2021R1/Measures/Overview/SB5512
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/PublicTestimonyDocument/26781


2000’s, or the recent cuts to the DA budget for political purposes.  Hence, those talking points are in error 
and should be soundly rejected by counties as misleading, at best.  Counties should continue to push for a 
restoration of recent State budget cuts to DA services.  A renewed effort in that regard was made following 
the outstanding May revenue forecast - but was similarly ignored.  This issue should be closely monitored 
and fully discussed by AOC membership.  Counties are currently paying for 96% of a state function ($306 
million out of $320 million).  This “partnership” needs help. 
 

. 

211



 

 

Oregon Judicial Department Bills 

• Aid and Assist Reform (SB 295).  Modifies processes to address persons not able to aid and assist in their 
defense to criminal charges.  The 2021 request, supported by a broad coalition of stakeholders, includes consensus 
amendments to SB 1575-A.  Signed 06/23/21 Effective 06/23/21 

• Fairness in Court Collections (HB 2176).  Repeals the $50 minimum charge to set up a payment plan; authorizes 
compromise (settlement) of financial obligations in criminal judgments other than restitution or compensatory fines. 
Signed 06/11/21 Effective 09/21/21.  

• Criminal Case Initiation Fees (HB 2177).  Allows the Chief Justice to charge reasonable fees to charge for 
providing electronic filing services for felony and misdemeanor cases.  Applies where the District Attorney files more 
than 500 felony cases per calendar year. Supports OJD’s tech fund. 4/27 Update: Died in House Judiciary. 

• Chief Justice Authority During Emergencies (SB 296).  Grants the Chief Justice authority to extend or suspend 
specified statutory timelines and order remote appearances in civil and criminal cases in a declared state of 
emergency. Signed 06/08/21 Effective 06/08/01  

 
Leading Non-OJD Concepts Impacting Court Services 
 
SB 48: Pretrial reform Enrolled 
SB 179: Oregon State Bar Bill – includes provision for authorized court staff to assist with forms Introduced 
SB 183: Full faith and credit between state and tribal justice systems Signed 06/15/21 Effective 01/01/22 
SB 218: Conditional discharge reforms Signed 06/15/21 Effective 01/01/22 
SB 282: Extends grace period to pay back residential rent Signed 05/19/21 Effective 05/19/21 
SB 397: Streamlining expungements Enrolled 
SB 578: Appointed counsel for respondents in protective proceedings (pilot) Signed 06/23/21 Effective 01/01/22 
SB 572: Authorizes vulnerable youth guardianships for youth age 18-21 Signed 06/23/21 Effective 09/25/21 
SB 755:  Implement Ballot Measure 110 Enrolled 
SB 819: Sentencing reconsideration Signed 06/23/21 Effective 01/01/22 
SB 817: Juvenile fees reform B-Engrossed 
HB 2002: Criminal justice reform package A-Engrossed 
HB 2239: Launch a statewide veterans’ court A- Engrossed 
HB 2539: Requires use of juror numbers in lieu of names Signed 06/15/21 Effective 01/01/22 
HB 2547: Study to improve trauma-informed court services A-Engrossed 
HB 3112: Cannabis Equity – provides expungement for qualifying marijuana offenses A-Engrossed 
HB 3182: Oregon ICWA A- Engrossed 
HB 3366: Family Treatment Courts A-Engrossed 

         Oregon’s State Courts: 2021 Legislative Overview 
 
 
 

 

 

 

212



OREGON DISTRICT ATTORNEYS ASSOCIATION  
 

The Oregon Legislature has officially adjourned! Below is a brief summary of final 
bills we were monitoring as the 2021 Legislature came to a close. A complete Legislative 
Report will be shared with the Legislative Committee in August.  
2021-22 Interim Dates of Interest 

Sept. 20 – 21st Possible Special Session (Redistricting) 
Sept. 22 – 24 Interim Committee Days 
Sept. 24th Deadline for Legislature to Approve Redistricting/Legislative Districts 
Nov. 15 – 18th Interim Committee Days  
Nov. 18th 2022 Session Bill Request Deadline  
Jan. 10 – 13th Interim Committee Days 
Jan. 14th 2022 Session Bill Filing Deadline 
Feb. 1 – Mar. 7th 2022 Session 
 

Bills of Interest Upon Adjournment 
 
SB 48C– Pretrial Release ODAA Neutral after negotiations 
The bill advanced out of Ways and Means with the $2.2M OJD funding request. View 
budget recommendation here. The bill included a budget note directing OJD to return 
to the Legislature with a report on the guidelines laid out in SB 48. Rep. Stark 
commented on the record that he appreciates the work of the victim advocates and the 
DA’s and urged the Chief Justice to continue to make the victim voice the center of the 
discussion. He also noted that the need for funding for new release officers is going to 
be necessary. View ODAA Testimony here. 
STATUS: Passed out of Senate 22 - 7 and House on vote of 39 - 16. Awaiting 
signature by Governor. 
SB 397 – Expungement Reform ODAA Support after negotiations 
STATUS: Passed out of Senate 24 - 5 and House on vote of 57 - 1. Awaiting 
signature by Governor. 
SB 497 – Misdemeanor DV Supervision Bill ODAA Support 
ODAA supported the bill with the -2 Amendment. See our written testimony here. We 
shared support for supervised probation for misdemeanor domestic violence offenders 
and the statements by the Dept. of Corrections committing to define compliance 
programs for these offenders to ensure they complete domestic violence specific 
programs like Batters Intervention Programs, evaluation for risk and future violent and 
victim notification prior to discharge.  
STATUS: Passed out of Senate 26 - 3 and House on vote of 57 - 0. Awaiting 
signature by Governor. 
SB 835 – Early Medical Release AIC/BM 11 Implications ODAA Oppose 
ODAA has shared significant concern with this bill. The bill would significantly expand 
the availability of medical parole as a mechanism for the early release of Adults in 

213

https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB48/C-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument/245354
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/PublicTestimonyDocument/30905
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB397/A-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB497/B-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/ProposedAmendment/20142
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/PublicTestimonyDocument/21835
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB835/Introduced


Custody, including all serious person felonies including Ballot Measure 11 crimes such as 
attempted murder, sexual assault and sexual abuse. ODAA testimony in opposition here. 
The Board of Parole shared similar concerns here.  
STATUS: DIED in Ways and Means. Was not released to subcommittee. 
HB 2002 – PSJ Police Reform ++ ODAA Oppose 
While the omnibus policy bill died, there were three sections that were adopted in other 
bills – including supervision fees in SB 620 ($10M replacement funding in HB 5006 (pg. 
72)), expanded earned discharge with notice in HB 2172, and funding for the Restorative 
Justice Grant Program in HB 2204 (funding of $1.5M in the Program Change Bill). 
STATUS: DIED IN COMMITTEE 
HB 3112 – “Cannabis Equity” Bill ODAA Oppose 
As proposed includes DA data/hand review of cases mandate and prohibition on MJ use 
as a supervision condition.  
STATUS: DIED in Ways and Means. Was not released to subcommittee. 
HB 2746 – Hope Cards ODAA Support 
HB 2746 appropriates $120,711 General Funds to the Department of Justice, Crime 
Victim Survivor Services to develop and implement the Hope Card Program. This bill was 
the result of a Rep. Noble workgroup that ODAA participated in – thank you Susana 
Escobedo/Marion Co! 
STATUS: Passed out of Senate 26 - 3 and House on vote of 53 - 0. Awaiting 
signature by Governor. 
SB 177 – AG’s Hearsay and the Fearful Victim Witness (State v Iseli) 
STATUS: Signed by Governor. Effective June 15, 2021 
SB 176 – AG’s Privilege and Abuse of Elders and Other Vulnerable Adults 
STATUS: Signed by Governor. Effective January 1, 2022 
SB 201 – Hedgepeth/Guzman DUII Fix 
STATUS: Awaiting signature by Governor. Effective upon signature. 
SB 218 –Expansion of Specialty Court Bill 
STATUS: Signed by Governor. Effective January 1, 2022 
SB 649 –Bailey’s Bill/Sex Abuse 2 Bill  
STATUS: Signed by Governor. Effective January 1, 2022 
SB 752 – Haltom Fix 
STATUS: Signed by Governor. Effective January 1, 2022 
SB 819 – Conviction Integrity Bill 
STATUS: Signed by Governor. Effective January 1, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

214

https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/PublicTestimonyDocument/21188
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/PublicTestimonyDocument/21176
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2002/A-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB620/A-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument/246329
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/CommitteeMeetingDocument/246329
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2172/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2204/A-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2746/B-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB177/A-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB176/Introduced
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB201/A-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB218/A-Engrossed
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB649/Introduced
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB752/Introduced
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB819/A-Engrossed


Closing message on public safety from Speaker Kotek-D: 
Critical Policing and Criminal Justice Reforms Cross Finish Line 

Leaders urge more work in next year’s session 
SALEM – Listening to the voices of Oregonians across the state who demanded reform of 
policing and criminal justice systems, the Legislature responded by passing more than two dozen 
policy bills and funding new programs to begin transforming these systems to ensure justice, 
accountability and equity for communities of color.  
“Transforming how law enforcement operates in Oregon will not happen overnight, nor will 
behavior change simply because we pass good legislation,” House Speaker Tina Kotek (D- 
Portland) said. “Yet, we can strengthen accountability and give clear direction for the changes 
we want to see. These bills are long overdue, and we anticipate more work ahead in next year’s 
session.”  
“We built the necessary infrastructure for our law enforcement agencies and their oversight 
systems to be responsive to the community’s needs,” said Rep. Janelle Bynum (D-East 
Portland/Happy Valley), chair of the House Committee on Judiciary. “We heard Oregonians 
when they said that the power of policing comes from community. This session, the community 
rebuilt policing. We began with an ambitious agenda, and we finished strong. We also realize 
that our work is not yet done, and we intend on bringing forth more bills in the interim session. 
For now, I’m focused on seeing how communities, cities and counties will build locally. We’ve 
given them the keys, now it’s time for them to drive.”  
One piece of unfinished business is House Bill 2002, which did not emerge from the budget 
committee at the end of the session. The bill was a comprehensive, community-driven approach 
to reform public safety policies and procedures, such as interrupting low-level interactions with  
police that have led to dangerous or deadly encounters for BIPOC Oregonians and individuals 
experiencing a mental health crisis.  
“Seeing House Bill 2002 not move forward was far and away my biggest disappointment of this 
session,” Kotek said. “I’m so appreciative of the community-driven process that was behind the 
bill. The discussion will continue, and I look forward to working with the coalition to bring the 
bill back in next year’s session.”  
Key funding pieces from House Bill 2002 did advance, including a $10 million special purpose 
appropriation for culturally-specific justice reinvestment programs, $4 million to the Oregon 
Criminal Justice Commission for restorative justice grants, $1.5 million for the Reimagine Safety 
Fund, and $10 million for Senate Bill 620 to backfill local dollars resulting from the elimination 
of the fees that counties charge folks who are in post-prison supervision.  
Below is a summary of police and criminal justice reform measures that passed during the 2021 
session:  
Public Defense Reform (HB 2003)  
Expands the Public Defense Services Commission to include individuals who have previously 
received services from public defenders. Modernizes contracting requirements by directing the 
commission to adopt new compensation, caseload, and oversight requirements.  
DPSST Training and Accreditation (HB 2162)  
Requires law enforcement agencies to achieve accreditation, adds public members to the 
Department of Public Safety Standards and Training (DPSST) board, requires equity training of 
all officers, and requires DPSST to revoke or suspend an officer’s certification if they have 
engaged in certain actions, like domestic violence and sexual abuse.  
Post-Prison Supervision Eligibility Expansion (HB 2172)  
Expands access to Oregon’s statewide post-prison supervision discharge program. Eligible 
persons must have substantially complied with the terms of their supervision.  
Restorative Justice Grants (HB 2204)  

215

https://www.oregonlegislature.gov/kotek/Documents/2021%20Session%20-%20Criminal%20Justice%20and%20Police%20Reform.pdf


Pairs with a $4 million funding package and directs the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission to 
award grants for restorative justice programs. Eligible programs must show collaboration with 
affected parties, district attorneys, defense, and more.  
Military Surplus Equipment Ban (HB 2481)  
Airway Training (HB 2513)  
Prohibits law enforcement agencies from receiving certain military surplus equipment from  
the federal government and requires approved purchases to be noticed and signed off on by  
local governing bodies. Requires officers to be trained on airway and circulatory anatomy to 
avoid seriously injuring or killing someone while trying to restrain them and to contact 
emergency medical services if a restrained person is having a medical emergency.  
Standards for Private Licensing Security Agencies (HB 2527)  
Brings private security into the professional workforce by requiring licensure through the 
Department of Public Safety Standards and Training.  
Trauma-Informed Training (HB 2575)  
Provides grants to develop local trauma-informed training to inform future statewide training 
through Department of Public Safety Standards and Training.  
Munition Regulation (HB 2928)  
Regulates the use of chemical incapacitants, impact projectiles, sound devices and strobe lights 
by law enforcement agencies and makes further clarifications to the use of tear gas.  
Duty to Intervene (HB 2929)  
Requires officers who witness misconduct of fellow officers to report the violation within 72 
hours to a direct supervisor, a superior officer in the chain of command, or the Department of 
Public Safety Standards and Training and requires investigations to occur within specified time 
frames.  
Arbitration Standards (HB 2930)  
Establishes a process to adopt statewide standards of conduct and discipline for officers and 
establishes a statewide evidentiary standard for arbitrators’ decisions for misconduct cases.  
Use of Force Reports (HB 2932)  
Requires all law enforcement agencies in the state to report to the national use-of-force database 
and requires the Oregon Criminal Justice Commission to regularly analyze this data and report 
back to the Legislature on its findings.  
Background Checks (HB 2936)  
Requires the DPSST to standardize background check processes through a statewide system to 
identify applicants for law enforcement positions who have participated in hate groups, racial 
supremacist organizations, or militant groups.  
Bias Crimes Training (HB 2986)  
Requires the DPSST to ensure that officers are trained to investigate, identify and report crimes 
motivated by bias based on the perceived gender of the victim.  
Doxing Prevention (HB 3047)  
Provides the ability to sue someone who releases personal information if that person knowingly 
disseminates information with the intent to provoke stalking, harassment, or injury (aka 
“doxing”).  
Unlawful Assembly (HB 3059)  
Clarifies archaic statutory language directing how local authorities can declare an “unlawful 
assembly.”  
Misconduct Records (HB 3145)  
Requires law enforcement agencies to report officer discipline when an economic sanction is 
imposed.  
Interference with a Peace Officer Reform (HB 3164)  

216



Aligns statute with recent Oregon Supreme Court rulings to limits the use of the charge of 
“interfering with a peace officer” to instances where an individual knowingly or intentionally 
interferes with an officer, thereby reducing its overuse in arrests for non-criminal behavior.  
Booking Photos (HB 3273)  
Restricts the way booking photos can be released and used publicly.  
Officer Uniforms and Identification (HB 3355)  
Specifies what identification must be worn by officers during crowd management situations and 
how the public can access this information.  
Access to Police Reports (SB 204)  
Allows civilian oversight boards of local law enforcement agencies to access the Law 
Enforcement Data Systems (LEDS).  
False Promises Youth Interviews (SB 418)  
Prohibits coercion and other forms of deceit by law enforcement when interviewing youth under 
certain circumstances.  
Expungement (SB 575)  
Removes barriers to expungement by providing for automatic expunction for certain juvenile 
records.  
Post-Prison Supervision Fee Elimination (SB 620)  
Eliminates post-prison supervision fees so individuals can focus on recovery and reentry.  
Civilian Oversight Agencies (SB 621)  
Affirms Measure 26-217, which Portlanders overwhelmingly passed last November.  
Sentencing Reconsideration (SB 819)  
Upon the consent of a district attorney and an incarcerated person, provides that a court may  
resentence an individual if the current sentence no longer advances the interest of justice.  
Alternative Programs for Persons in Custody (SB 836)  
Ensures incarcerated persons have access to alternative programs while incarcerated and that 
notice be given prior to suspending or terminating a program.  
Anti-Slavery Constitutional Amendment (SJR 10)  
Asks the people to vote to modernize the Oregon constitution through an amendment to abolish a 
provision that allows involuntary servitude and slavery.  
 

217



2021 Legislative Session 
Wrap-up – Quick overview 

 

Bill Number Summary 

OYA Agency Bills 
SB 83 JCP Basic/Diversion dollars have been managed by OYA for years, but were not in 

our statutes.  This bill places them in OYA statutes. 
 
It also directs us to work with juvenile departments and Youth Development 
Division to align JCP Basic/Diversion with JCP prevention services. 

SB 131 Allows OYA to share records with medical examiner in death investigation.  Prior to 
the bill it was not clear that we could easily share our records, and we ran into 
snags in one case having to get court orders.  This makes the process much 
smoother and allows us to promptly share records for these investigations. 

SB 132 The current retention of fingerprints is 5 years.  We knew that with youth 
committed to us for longer periods of time due to SB 1008, those prints needed to 
be retained longer.  
 
This bill allows OYA to print youth upon intake to YCF (only as a last resort – it 
should be done before the youth gets to us.)  Also changes retention of fingerprint 
records for youth committed to a YCF.  OSP will keep them until we tell them the 
youth is no longer in our custody. 

SB 133 There were several victim related updates in this bill:  
1) Gave us the legal framework for a facilitated dialogue and responsibility letter 

bank program (restorative justice like programs); 
2) We can share limited youth info with victims when seeking impact on parole 

decisions or upon request of the victim; and  
3) Allows court to share written waiver findings with victim 
 

We don’t have capacity for programs, yet.  And we have work to do with how we 
are going to operationalize the sharing of information with victims. 

SB 134 There was a gap for DOC youth in OYA facilities regarding release of records.  They 
did not have the same protection as OYA youth nor adults in custody (AIC) at DOC.  
The new standard for these youth is the same for AIC at DOC, which is balancing 
confidentiality with public interest.   

SB 135 When OSP does criminal investigations in a YCF, there was not clear authority for us 
to receive those reports or share those reports with the courts for second look 
hearings.  The new law allows for both to occur. 

Juvenile Justice System Bills 

SB 436 In all juvenile statute, changes youth offender to adjudicated youth.  (Definition 
stays the same, which is person under 18 adjudicated on crime.) 

SB 575 Currently, youth must request expunction of their juvenile record.  This bill 
modified the process for informal cases – the juvenile departments will initiate 
expunction in all informal cases once the youth turns 18 and the case is closed. 
 

218

https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0083/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0131/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0132/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0133/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0134/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0135/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0436/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0575/Enrolled


The bill made several other procedural changes to expunction on formal cases, 
most notably that youth requesting expunction are eligible for court appointed 
counsel. 

SB 817 Removes all fines and fees (except for DOC youth), including child support, from 
juvenile court for youth and parents.  Goes into effect in January 2022. 

HB 2163 Directs Housing and Community Services Dept to develop a rental assistance 
program for youth coming out of sub care, detention, YCF, or mental health 
program.  It must be operated in three or four regions in the state and it was 
funded with 4.5M dollars. 

HB 2939 SB 1008 fixes: 

• Venue is county of occurrence if a waiver is filed in the case.  If not waiver, 
then venue can be either county of occurrence or residence.  

• Youth may be admitted to a YCF until age 20 for Measure 11 crimes.  All 
other crimes, admission must still be prior to age 19. 

• Effective on June 11, 2021 

HB 2940 Changes pre-adjudication detention timelines in cases where a waiver has been 
filed.  The 56-day limit no longer applies, and the review hearings happen at less 
frequent intervals (every 30 days instead of every 10 days). 

 

219

https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/SB0817/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2163/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2939/Enrolled
https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB2940/Enrolled

	Final Combined Binder
	Combined Meeting Package MCPSCC July 27, 2021F1
	Title Page
	MARION COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY COORDINATING COUNCIL

	MCPSCC July 27 Meeting Packet 
	Section Dividers
	Chair Letter of Supp Speciality Courts
	Specialty Courts Presentation Grant App 2021-2023
	Marion County Treatment Courts
	Treatment Court Goals
	Treatment Court Funding
	CJC Grant Requirements
	Marion County Treatment Courts
	Adult Drug Court
	Mental Health Court
	Veterans Treatment Court
	Fostering Attachment Treatment Court
	STAR Court
	The Ask

	JRI 19-21 Request to Rebalance (MCPSCC)_2
	MCPSCC April 13 Full Council Meeting Minutes Draft
	Draft Minutes Special Meeting MCPSCC April 28
	Final Issue Brief 3 July 16, 21 KK
	Issue Brief 4 Supplemental Grant KK
	Peer Support Program OverviewKK
	2021-7-13 JRI Application Liberty House 10% 
	JRI Grant Application 21-23_JRI_RFP
	1. Overview
	2. Program Goals
	3. Eligible Program Requirements
	4. List of Evidence-based Curriculums
	5. Unallowable Uses for Award Funds
	6. How to Apply
	7. Preliminary Application
	7.1. Preliminary Application Contents
	7.2. Cover Sheet

	8. Final Application
	8.1. Final Application Contents
	8.2. Cover Sheet
	8.3. Narrative
	8.4. Goals of Justice Reinvestment
	8.5. Cultural Responsiveness
	8.6. Evidence of Collaboration in Planning and Implementation (300-word maximum)
	8.7. Proposed Program Budget
	8.8. Victim Services Narrative
	8.9. Victim Services Budget
	8.10. Evaluation Plan
	8.11. Racial and Ethnic Impact Statement

	9. Supplemental Grant Funds (Optional)
	9.1. Overview of Justice Reinvestment Supplementary Grant Program
	9.2. Supplemental Victim Services
	9.3. Program Performance Objectives
	9.4. How to Apply
	9.5. Allowable Uses
	9.6. Application Contents

	10.  Application Review and Award Decisions
	10.1. Formula Grant Review Process
	10.2. Supplemental Grant Review Process
	10.3. Award Decisions and Protests
	10.4. Award Conditions

	11. Monitoring and Reporting
	11.1. Award Conditions
	11.2. Reporting

	12.  Distribution of Funding
	13.  Grant Suspension or Termination

	AOC P.S. Legislation 2021-06-28
	 1. Police Reform: “Identify and facilitate appropriate legislative responses to the causes of racial and ethnic disparities in the justice system to reduce and ultimately eradicate them, fostering public trust and promoting public safety.”
	Oregon law enforcement has a proven track record of working closely with the Oregon State Legislature on public safety legislation that is responsive to community needs and improves public safety outcomes for all Oregonians. With this as a goal, AOC a...
	AOC wishes to express special thanks to the members of the House Judiciary Committee, Chaired by Representative Bynum and Vice-Chaired by Representatives Noble and Power, the members of the House Subcommittee on Equitable Policing, Chaired by Represen...
	2020 First Special Session
	 SB 1604  Police discipline matrix and arbitrator decisions
	 HB 4201  Transparent Policing and Use of Force Reform Committee
	 HB 4203  Use of force reform – chokeholds
	 HB 4205  Duty to intervene with regard to misconduct
	 HB 4207  DPSST database of suspensions and revocations
	 HB 4208  Use of force reform - tear gas
	2020 Second Special Session
	 HB 4301  Use of force reform – generally
	2021 Regular Session
	 HB 2162  Police training and certification
	 HB 2481  Limits on use of military surplus equipment
	 HB 2513  CPR training and EMS referrals
	 HB 2575  Interactions with persons who experienced trauma
	 HB 2928  Limits on use of teargas and riot munitions
	 HB 2929  Duty to report misconduct
	 HB 2930  Police discipline arbitration reform
	 HB 2932  Reporting to FBI use of force database
	 HB 2936  Background checks and social media policies
	 HB 2986  Gender crime training
	 HB 3047  Civil cause of action for doxing
	 HB 3059  Unlawful assembly response
	 HB 3145  Police discipline database
	 HB 3164  Revisions to interfering with a police officer
	 HB 3273  Regulating release of booking photos
	 HB 3355  Crowd management uniforms in larger cities

	 2. Probation Fees: “Make it optional for counties to collect parole and probation fees (changing “shall” to “may” in ORS 423.570).”
	AOC and the Oregon Association of Community Correction Directors (OACCD) supported Senate Bill 620 to allow counties the discretion to not charge and collect probation fees.  That bill passed the Senate without any opposition.  However, the incredibly...
	 3. Community Corrections Funding: “Secure full funding of baseline community corrections essential to the efficacy of supervised probation and ensuring public safety.”
	Baseline funding was expanded though the Department of Corrections (DOC) budget bill, HB 5004.  Full funding for JRI and other specialty programs occurred through the Criminal Justice Commission (CJC) budget bill,  HB 5005, and expansion to include ce...

	 4. Emergency Management: “Enhanced Emergency Notification and Preparedness:  The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and wildfire disasters have called attention to the need for enhanced attention and funding for emergency management services.”
	 HB 2927 renames the Office of Emergency Management (OEM) as the Oregon Department of Emergency Management (ODEM) and establishes ODEM as an independent state agency, directing it to carry out various functions related to emergency response and prepa...
	 The bill also transfers the Oregon Emergency Response System (OERS) from the Oregon State Police (OSP) to ODEM, and makes the State Fire Marshal an independent state agency.
	 The bill also establishes the Emergency Preparedness Advisory Council (EPAC) to make recommendations related to catastrophic disaster, establishes the Local Government Emergency Management Advisory Council (LGEMAC) to make recommendations to ODEM re...
	It should also be noted that In January of 2021, AOC added the following principle to the AOC Public Safety Steering Committee list of principles: “Government at all levels should fully support the fundamental principles of emergency management, inclu...

	B. Notes on Specific Bills
	8. SB 5505 - County courthouse project bonds

	BUDGET NOTE
	9. SB 5512 - District Attorney budget




	2021 OJD Legislative Wachlist 
	OYA 2021 Legislative Session - Marion LPSCC_4

	AOC Legislation 2021-06-28-AOC-PSSC-Staff-Memo_3
	 1. Police Reform: “Identify and facilitate appropriate legislative responses to the causes of racial and ethnic disparities in the justice system to reduce and ultimately eradicate them, fostering public trust and promoting public safety.”
	Oregon law enforcement has a proven track record of working closely with the Oregon State Legislature on public safety legislation that is responsive to community needs and improves public safety outcomes for all Oregonians. With this as a goal, AOC a...
	AOC wishes to express special thanks to the members of the House Judiciary Committee, Chaired by Representative Bynum and Vice-Chaired by Representatives Noble and Power, the members of the House Subcommittee on Equitable Policing, Chaired by Represen...
	2020 First Special Session
	 SB 1604  Police discipline matrix and arbitrator decisions
	 HB 4201  Transparent Policing and Use of Force Reform Committee
	 HB 4203  Use of force reform – chokeholds
	 HB 4205  Duty to intervene with regard to misconduct
	 HB 4207  DPSST database of suspensions and revocations
	 HB 4208  Use of force reform - tear gas
	2020 Second Special Session
	 HB 4301  Use of force reform – generally
	2021 Regular Session
	 HB 2162  Police training and certification
	 HB 2481  Limits on use of military surplus equipment
	 HB 2513  CPR training and EMS referrals
	 HB 2575  Interactions with persons who experienced trauma
	 HB 2928  Limits on use of teargas and riot munitions
	 HB 2929  Duty to report misconduct
	 HB 2930  Police discipline arbitration reform
	 HB 2932  Reporting to FBI use of force database
	 HB 2936  Background checks and social media policies
	 HB 2986  Gender crime training
	 HB 3047  Civil cause of action for doxing
	 HB 3059  Unlawful assembly response
	 HB 3145  Police discipline database
	 HB 3164  Revisions to interfering with a police officer
	 HB 3273  Regulating release of booking photos
	 HB 3355  Crowd management uniforms in larger cities

	 2. Probation Fees: “Make it optional for counties to collect parole and probation fees (changing “shall” to “may” in ORS 423.570).”
	AOC and the Oregon Association of Community Correction Directors (OACCD) supported Senate Bill 620 to allow counties the discretion to not charge and collect probation fees.  That bill passed the Senate without any opposition.  However, the incredibly...
	 3. Community Corrections Funding: “Secure full funding of baseline community corrections essential to the efficacy of supervised probation and ensuring public safety.”
	Baseline funding was expanded though the Department of Corrections (DOC) budget bill, HB 5004.  Full funding for JRI and other specialty programs occurred through the Criminal Justice Commission (CJC) budget bill,  HB 5005, and expansion to include ce...

	 4. Emergency Management: “Enhanced Emergency Notification and Preparedness:  The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and wildfire disasters have called attention to the need for enhanced attention and funding for emergency management services.”
	 HB 2927 renames the Office of Emergency Management (OEM) as the Oregon Department of Emergency Management (ODEM) and establishes ODEM as an independent state agency, directing it to carry out various functions related to emergency response and prepa...
	 The bill also transfers the Oregon Emergency Response System (OERS) from the Oregon State Police (OSP) to ODEM, and makes the State Fire Marshal an independent state agency.
	 The bill also establishes the Emergency Preparedness Advisory Council (EPAC) to make recommendations related to catastrophic disaster, establishes the Local Government Emergency Management Advisory Council (LGEMAC) to make recommendations to ODEM re...
	It should also be noted that In January of 2021, AOC added the following principle to the AOC Public Safety Steering Committee list of principles: “Government at all levels should fully support the fundamental principles of emergency management, inclu...

	B. Notes on Specific Bills
	8. SB 5505 - County courthouse project bonds

	BUDGET NOTE
	9. SB 5512 - District Attorney budget


	OREGON DISTRICT ATTORNEYS ASSOCIATION



